
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

DECEMBER 3, 2012 
 

 



Table of Contents

Agenda 2
Consideration and Action:

94-49 Memo 5
94-49 Applicant Request 6
1A Site Plan 7
8A Site Plan 9

Public Hearing and Action:
PB 12-23 Case Analysis 12

Public Hearing and Action:
PB 12-10 Case Analysis 22
PB 12-10 Site Plan 33

Public Hearing and Action:
PB 12-20 Case Analysis 34

Public Hearing and Action:
PB 12-05 Case Analysis 44

Award bids for Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant
Southern Outer Banks Water System

Rec. of Award-RO Plant Expansion 69
Appointment of Commissioner to Albemarle Commission

Albemarle Comm Board Appointment 74
Appointments to Planning Board

Planning Board 75
Planning Board Appointment Form 76

Appointment to Board of Adjustment
Board of Adjustment 77

Appointment to Tourism Board
Tourism Board Appointment Form 78
Martine-Applic for Tourism Board 79

Budget Amendments
Budget Amendments 80

Resolution to declare computers issued to Commissioner Rorer
and Etheridge as surplus

Surplus Resolution 97
Approval of November 19, 2012 Minutes

99Minutes 
Budget Amendments

Budget Amendment 119

1



Document last changed: 12/20/2012 3:00 PM 

 

REVISED  
 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, December 03, 2012 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

7:00 pm Call to Order 
 
A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Renate Macchirole, Presentation of Governor's Award for Volunteer 

Service, The Monarch Lighthouse Club Bell Ringers  
 

1. Approval of November 19, 2012 Minutes 
 

2. Recognition and comments from out-going Commissioners Rorer 
and Etheridge and 

 
5 minute recess 
 

3. The Honorable Ray Matusko, Clerk of Superior Court, to give the 
oath of office for newly elected Commissioners 

 
4. Election of Chairman 

 
5. Election of Vice-Chairman 

 
5 minute recess 
 
D) Approval of Agenda 
E) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
2



Document last changed: 12/20/2012 3:00 PM 

 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Consideration and Action: PB 94-49 Currituck Club, Phase 1A and 8A:  
Request for an amended preliminary plat/special use permit extension for 
Phases 1A and 8A.  The two phases within the planned unit development 
consists of 30 residential lots. 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund:  Request 
for a special use permit for an outdoor tour operation - horse tours.  The 
property is located at 1129 Corolla Village Road, Tax Map 114H, Parcel B, 
Poplar Branch Township (Beach). 

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-10 East Point Estates:  Request for a 
preliminary plat/special use permit for 22 lots located on Knotts Island, 172 
Marsh Causeway, Tax Map 46, Parcel 3, Fruitville Township. 

D) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-20 Harbinger Land & Timber: 
Request for conditional zoning from Agricultural (A) and Residential (R) to 
Conditional District-Residential (CD-R) of 84 acres in Moyock on the west 
side of Poyners Road and north and south sides of Elrod Road, Tax Map 
31, Parcels 1A, 1B, 1D, 15A, and 17A, Crawford Township. 

E) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-05 Currituck County:  Request to 
amend the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 1: General 
Provisions, Chapter 2 Administration, Chapter 7: Environmental 
Protection, Chapter 9: Enforcement, and Chapter 10: Definitions and 
Measurement to update the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance to 
remain compliant in the National Flood Insurance Program and the NC 
Floodplain Management Program. 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Award bids for Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant Southern 
Outer Banks Water System  

New Business 

 
A) Board Appointments: 

1. Appointment of Commissioner to Albemarle Commission 
2. Appointments to Planning Board 
3. Appointment to Board of Adjustment 
4. Appointment to Tourism Board 

B) Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Resolution to declare computers issued to Commissioner Rorer 

and Etheridge as surplus  DELETED 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
3



Document last changed: 12/20/2012 3:00 PM 

 
3. Approval of Financial Institution to finance the Whalehead Drainage 

Project, Phase III. 
4. Approval of November 19, 2012 Minutes 
5. Acknowledge receipt of proposed Property Tax Schedules, 

Standards and Rules from the Tax Assessor and call for a public 
hearing on January 7, 2013 
 

C) Commissioner’s Report 
D) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Budget Amendments 

Adjourn 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
4



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 
 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: November 26, 2012 
 
Subject: Currituck Club, PUD, Special Use Permit Extension 
 
 
On February 7, 2011, the Board of Commissioners voted to approve the amended 
preliminary/special use permit for Currituck Club, PUD (Phases 1A and 8A).  The two phases 
within the planned unit development consists of 30 residential lots.  The preliminary 
plat/special use permit approval will expire February 7, 2013.   
 
On July, 11, 2012, Douglas E. Anderson, Currituck Associates – Residential Partnership 
Executive Vice President, submitted a request for a two year preliminary plat extension of the 
subdivision (see attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the Board of Commissioners may 
grant an extension of the special use permit one time for a period of two years, if they 
conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The special use permit has not yet expired and will expire February 7, 2013. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith.   
 

3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  
Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   

 
 
 

 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: December 3, 2012 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund 

 
ITEM:   PB12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund – SUP Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse 

Tours 
 

LOCATION:  1129 Corolla Village Road 

TAX ID: 114H-000-000B-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: GB - General Business    
  
PRESENT USE: Corolla Wild Horse Fund Horse Museum & Offices 
 
OWNER:  TFP LLC 
   PO Box 369 
   Corolla, NC 27927 
 
APPLICANT:  Corolla Wild Horse Fund 
   1129 Corolla Village Road 
   Corolla, NC 27927 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Retail Shops Zoned GB 
SOUTH Charter School Zoned GB 
EAST:  Real Estate Offices Zoned GB 
WEST: Retail Shops Zoned GB 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 1,306 sq. ft. Condo Footprint on 1 acre parcel 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

a. The applicant seeks a Special Use Permit for Outdoor Tour Operator.  
b.  The applicant previously operated from the adjacent property under Special Use 

Permit PB09-37; it was approved on February 15, 2010 for one (1) vehicle 
seating 1-5 persons.   

c. The applicant has moved locations due to the Charter School and therefore 
requires a Special Use Permit for the new location. 

d. The request is for two (2) tour vehicles (seating five (5) patrons) to be used for 
guided tours.   

e. The Board of Commissioners has considered limiting the total number of horse tour 
vehicles; however, no action has been taken to date. 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 1 of 10 

12



 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a special use 

indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a.  Outdoor Tour Operators are permitted in the GB zoning district with a Special Use 

Permit. 
 

3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed conditions include all of the provisions for Outdoor Tour Operators in 

Section 3.7.3 of the Unified Development Ordinance.  
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Based on the submittal, the project will not endanger the public health or safety. 
b. There are no proposed changes to the existing site. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in 

harmony with the area in which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The parcel is currently in a well-established commercial area. 

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted 

plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Corolla subarea.  The 
proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 

a. Policy ED1: new and expanding industries and businesses should be especially 
encouraged that: 1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly 
skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 

b. Policy HP3: Development of the tourism and educational potential of the area's 
architectural, historic and cultural resources shall be encouraged.  

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 2 of 10 

13



The Corolla Village Small Area Plan designates this site as Conservation on the Future 
Land Use Map.   

c.   Policy ED1: Promote the growth of existing businesses and the recruitment of new 
businesses that are compatible with the vision of the area. 

 
 

7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, 
including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county 
facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining 
when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be 
in place within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of 
major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Approval of this request should have no impact on public facilities 

 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
CONDITIONAL APPROVAL subject to the following: 
1. All tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day. Tag-a-long tours are 

permitted as long as the lead vehicle is operated by an employee of the tour company 
and subsequent vehicles are under the employee’s supervision. 

2. Tour/Rental vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display 
the company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 

3. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. Beaches 
and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances. Tours 
shall also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

4. There shall be one parking space required for every vehicle seating 1-5 persons, two 
parking spaces required for every vehicle seating 6-10 persons etc., and one parking 
space required for every two employees.  If any additional activities or uses occur.  
Currently there is adequate on-site parking. 

Use Parking Requirement Quantity Parking Total 

Museum 1space per 300 sq. ft. 964  sq. ft. 3 spaces 

Office 1 space per 400 sq. ft. 392 sq. ft. 1 spaces 

Horse Tour Rentals Tour vehicle seating 1-5 persons = 
1 space per vehicle 

 
2 vehicles 2 spaces 

Employees (Horse 
tours) 1 space/2 employees 2 employees 1 spaces 

Total Parking available to  
Corolla Wild Horse Fund = 

7 spaces 

Total Parking Required for uses 
associated with Corolla Wild Horse 

Fund 
7 spaces 

 
5. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns may be used as 

long as the parking requirements and all other conditions of this permit are met.  Reserve 
vehicles must be stored at an approved location. 

6. This special use permit shall be reviewed administratively on an annual basis and a report 
shall be filed with the Currituck County Board of Commissioners detailing the nature of 
any complaints received by the Planning Department.  At the discretion of the Code 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 3 of 10 

14



Enforcement Officer or Board of Commissioners, the special use permit shall be subject to 
revocation or modification by the permit issuing authority following a public hearing. 

7. The Board of Commissioners may establish a maximum number of vehicles, hours of 
operation, and permit duration as part of the special use permit approval process. 

 
IV.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-23 with the Technical Review Committee 
recommendations included in the case analysis. 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 4 of 10 

15



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (11-13-12) 
Ms. Wells stated she would be glad to answer any questions. 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 5 of 10 

16



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Karen McCalpin, Corolla Wild Horse Fund 
 
From: Jennie Newbern 
 
Date: October 11, 2012 
 
Re:  PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund Special Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the October 17, 2012 TRC meeting.  In order to 
be scheduled for the November 13, 2012 Planning Board meeting, please address all comments 
by 3:00 p.m. on October 22, 2012.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the 
TRC meeting.  
 
Planning, Jennie Newbern 
Reviewed 
 

1. Provide the square footage of each of the existing uses: Museum (including retail) and 
Office. 

2. There are three (3) proposed tour vehicles with a capacity of six (6) persons per 
vehicle; there must be adequate on-site parking per the UDO. (See #8 below).  Is the 
tour guide included in the capacity?  

3. The site plan on file indicates that there are seven (7) parking spaces allocated to the 
subject building. 

4. Provide the number of employees on the largest shift 
5. Provide the hours of operation 
6. All tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day.  Tag-a-long tours are 

permitted as long as the lead vehicle is operated by an employee of the tour 
company and subsequent vehicles are under the employee’s supervision. 

7. Tour/Rental vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly 
display the company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 

8. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. 
Beaches and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of 
Ordinances. Tours shall also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

9. There shall be one parking space required for every vehicle seating 1-5 persons, two 
parking spaces required for every vehicle seating 6-10 persons etc., and one parking 
space required for every two employees.  If any additional activities or uses occur on-
site, additional parking may be required per the Unified Development Ordinance.  

10. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns may be used 
as long as the parking requirements and all other conditions of this permit are met.  
Reserve vehicles must be stored at an approved location. 

11. This special use permit is valid for one year from the date of approval and shall 
remain valid so long as the conditions under which it is granted are met. 

12. The Board of Commissioners may establish a maximum number of vehicles, hours of 
operation, and permit duration as part of the special use permit approval process. 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 6 of 10 

17



 
 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Approved 
 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed – None 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
Approved 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
No Comment 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
No Comment 
 
NCDENR, Land Quality, Pat McClain 
No Comment 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed  
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Reviewed 
 
Office of State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbott 
The general area has developed for commercial use.  It is unlikely that a significant 
archaeological site will be impacted by this project. An archaeological survey is not 
recommended. No Comment. 
 
Please note that comments were not received from the following: 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 
 
 
 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 7 of 10 

18



 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 8 of 10 

19



 
 
 
 
 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 9 of 10 

20



 
 

 
PB 12-23 Corolla Wild Horse Fund  

Special Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator – Horse Tours 
Page 10 of 10 

21



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: December 3, 2012 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

 
ITEM:   PB 12-10  East Point Estates, Preliminary Plat/Special Use Permit for a 22-

lot subdivision.  
 
LOCATION: Knotts Island:  172 Marsh Causeway, Fruitville Township. 

TAX ID: 0046-000-003B-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: RR (Residential Recreational)    
  
PRESENT USE: Campground 
 
OWNER:  Currituck 34, LLC 
   500 Central Drive, Suite 106 
   Virginia Beach, VA  23464 
 
APPLICANT:  Clayton E. Massey, PE 
   Bowman Consulting 
   1561 Bradford Road, Suite 202 
   Virginia Beach, VA  23455 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Mobile Home Park/Campground RR 
SOUTH Low density residential/Farmland A 
EAST:  Low density residential/Mining/Farmland A 
WEST: North Landing River 

 
N/A 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Limited Service Area 

within the Knotts Island and Gibbs Woods subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 32.955 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: 22 Residential Lots 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: .67 units per acre  
 
OPEN SPACE: 6.59 acres required open space (20% of total development). 

7.151 acres open space provided including 20,000 square foot of 
water access. 

 
UTILITIES: The individual lots will be served by private wells and on-site septic 

systems.     
 

PB 12-10  East Point Estates 
Preliminary Plat 

Page 1 of 11 

22



 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

1. Currituck 34, LLC is requesting preliminary plat/special use permit approval of a 22 lot 
residential subdivision with an overall project density of .67 units per acre. 

2. The proposed development includes a 20,000 square foot water access.  However, the 
area provided is linear in shape which may reduce the overall access potential.   Access is 
provided to an existing boat ramp.   

3. The sketch plan was approved October 12, 2012. 
 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a special use 

indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Chapter 10 of the UDO allows a major subdivision as a permissible use with a special 

use permit. 
 

3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. As presented, the subdivision meets or exceeds the minimum requirements of the 

ordinance. 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The subdivisions should have little to no impact on public health or safety. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in 

harmony with the area in which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The UDO indicates that a subdivision is allowed in the RR zoning district with a special 

use permit. 
b. The proposed residential subdivision shall harmonize well with the surrounding 

community. 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 2 of 11 

23



 
 

6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted 
plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Limited Services within the Knotts Island and 
Gibbs Woods subarea.  The Limited Services area is to provide for primarily residential 
development at low densities.  Base density should be one unit per acre but could be 
increased to 1.5 units per acre through overlay zoning depending upon whether service 
facilities are in placed or planned on the surrounding community.  The policy emphasis for 
the developable areas of Knotts Island is to remain as low to very low density residential 
areas; predominantly 1 unit per 3 acres.  The proposed use is in keeping with the policies 
of the plan, some of which are: 

 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at densities 
appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether the 
development is within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of sewage 
treatment available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities providing access to 
the site, and the proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services.  For example, 
projects falling within the Full Services areas of the Future Land Use Map would be 
permitted a higher density because of the availability of infrastructure as well as similarity 
to the existing development pattern.  Such projects could be developed at a density of two 
(2) or more dwelling units per acre.   Projects within areas designated as Limited Service 
would be permitted a density of one (1) to one and one half (1.5) units per acre depending 
upon the surrounding development pattern and availability of resources.  Projects within 
areas designated as Rural or Conservation by the Future Land Use Plan would be permitted 
a much lower density of 1 dwelling unit per 3 acres because of the lack of infrastructure in 
the area, the existing low density development pattern, and presence of environmentally 
sensitive natural areas.   
 
POLICY KI1: The need for ACCESS TO PUBLIC TRUST WATERS in the Knotts Island area shall 
be met through periodic improvements to existing public facilities. The County also 
recognizes that private sector facilities may play a role in satisfying access needs to the 
water. 
 

7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, 
including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county 
facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining 
when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be 
in place within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of 
major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed 22 lot residential subdivision will not exceed the county’s ability to 

provide adequate public facilities. 
 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
approval subject to the following plan corrections: 
 
 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 3 of 11 

24



Planning: 

1. A signed copy of the US Army Corps of Engineer’s wetland delineation and jurisdictional 
determination shall be provided that is consistent with the preliminary determination. 

2. Three full size copies of the revised open space calculations must be provided. 

3. The road names must be provided and approved. 

4. A hardsurfaced, ADA accessible trail system may be provided in the 22 lot residential 
subdivision in lieu of sidewalks on both sides of the proposed streets. 

NC State Archaeology: 

5. A Phase I Cultural Resources Survey was completed by Circa- Cultural Resource 
Management, LLC in June, 2012.  Due to the sites high probability for potentially 
significant archaeological resources, the OSA is recommending that the project approvals 
include the following conditions: 

1. Prior to initiation of any ground disturbing activities within the project area, the 
permittee shall arrange for an archaeological survey and assessment of the entire 
project area. The purpose of the survey will be to locate archaeological sites within 
the project area and to determine if they are significant in terms of the National 
Register of Historic Places.  

2. If a significant site is located within the project area the permittee shall determine 
whether the site will be adversely affected by the project activities; and, if so, 
develop and implement an appropriate mitigation plan. Two copies of all resulting 
archaeological reports, as well as one copy of the North Carolina site forms, should be 
forwarded to the Office of State Archaeology for review and comment as soon as 
they are available and in advance of any construction or ground disturbance activities.  
A list of archaeological consultants who have conducted or expressed an interest in 
contract work in North Carolina is available at www.arch.dcr.state.nc.us/consults.htm. 
The archaeologists listed, or any other experienced archaeologist, may be contacted 
to conduct the recommended survey. All activities associated with the archaeological 
investigations shall be coordinated with the Office of State Archaeology prior to 
beginning any archaeological fieldwork. 
 

IV.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval of 12-10 with the Technical Review Committee 
recommendations and notes regarding potential presence of archaeology resources on the 
final plat.  

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 4 of 11 

25



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (11-13-12) 
Mr. Massey thanked staff and provided an overview of the project.  
 
Mr. Bell asked if the average person would be able to turn around at the boat ramp. 
 
Mr. Massey stated yes.  
 
Mr. Cooper asked about the archaeology survey. 
 
Mr. Massey provided an overview of the Phase I survey which was completed in June, 2012. 
 

 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 5 of 11 

26



 

 
 

 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 6 of 11 

27



 
 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 7 of 11 

28



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Clay Massey, Bowman Consulting 
 Mike Sifen, Currituck 34, LLC 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: August 15, 2012 
 
Re:  East Point Estates, Preliminary Plat 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the August 15, 2012 TRC meeting.  In order to be 
scheduled for the September 11, 2012 Planning Board meeting, please address all comments 
and resubmit a corrected plan by 3:00 p.m. on August 20, 2012.   TRC comments are valid for six 
months from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Planning, Donna Voliva 252-232-6032 
Approved with comments 

1. The plans submitted and titled Sketch Plans appear to be preliminary construction plans 
and not a sketch plan and contain additional information.  A sketch plan (other than 
preconstruction plans) should be submitted and approved by August 20, 2012 in order to 
remain on the schedule outlined above. 

2. Please provide the completed Special Use Permit application (pages 5 and 6)  
3. The vicinity map must have a scale of 1”=2,000’ or larger. 
4. Please provide the smallest lot size on the preliminary plat.   The information is provided 

on the plat titled sketch plan. 
5. Please provide the parcel ID number on the preliminary plat. The information is provided 

on the plat titled sketch plan. 
6. Please provide the total number of lots in the preliminary plat. The information is provided 

on the plat titled sketch plan. 
7. All interior lots (excluding cul-de-sac lots) shall have a minimum lot width of 125’ 

measured at the front setback line. 
8. Will any portion of Pond 2 be filled? 
9. All double front lots shall have a 5 foot non ingress/egress easement on the most travelled 

roadway (include lots 11 and 12). 
10. Please identify the actual location of any 404 Wetlands as defined by the US Army 

Corps of Engineers. 
11. Please provide suitable lot evaluations prepared by Albemarle Regional Health Services 

for all 22 lots. 
12. The proposed reserve utility open space appears to be located in a ditch.  This area must 

be suitable in terms of size, location, soil type, topography, and other relevant factors to 
accommodate a treatment area if one becomes necessary due to septic tank failure or 
other reasons.  Specifications must be provided to the satisfaction of the county engineer 
and Board of Commissioners.  Please clarify if the reserve utility open space is included in 
the Open Space B calculations. 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 8 of 11 

29



13. The preliminary construction plans must include the location of all street identification 
signage and stop signs.   

14. The preliminary plat shall contain the Statement of Environmental Concern found in the 
Development Review Process Manual. 

15. The maps in the Phase I Cultural Resources Survey of East Pont Estates do not appear to 
reflect the actual location of the property.   

16. Please correct the water body name on all documents.   
17. Please correct the flood zone along the waterway to AE 6’. 
18. Please provide road names and the approval form for all proposed roads in the 

subdivision. 
19. Please provide the water access open space area calculation on the preliminary plat.  The 

ordinance requires a minimum 20,000 square feet water access to public trust or estuarine 
waters. 

20. Please label the CAMA Area of Environmental Concern (75’ from the water’s edge). 
21. Please provide the surface material for the trail system. 
22. All improved areas of the trail system shall maintain a 10’ setback from all property lines. 
23. The preconstruction plans (illustrated as sketch plan) should include the township 

information. 
24. Street trees (small deciduous) shall be spaced 30 feet on center for the length of street 

frontage.   
25. Please provide the basis for the 85’ and 90’ front setback for lots 5 and 6. 

 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Reviewed 

1. Building Pad elevations (BPE) and Finished Floor elevations (FFE) should be shown on each 
lot.  The BPE should be at or above the 10 yr 24 hr storm and the FFE is 18" above the 
BPE.   In this case, due to soil type, proximity to the sound and elevation, if the 10yr/24hr 
storm is below existing ground level, there may be no need to add fill for the building 
pads. (the BPE will be the existing ground elevations)  

2. Due to the slope on the swales heading for the shoreline the state will probably require 
rock check dams at every foot of elevation drop.  We would require a rock check dam at 
the outlet end of each swale to slow the velocity and dissipate the flow into the wooded 
area before entering the sound. 

 
Currituck County Engineer, Michelle Perry 
Reviewed 

1. Provide building pad and first floor elevations. 
2. Provide state permits. 
3. The 10yr. post development runoff shall not exceed the 10yr pre development runoff. 
4. The reserve septic field needs to be on suitable soils. 
These comments will not hold up approval of preliminary plat, but need to be addressed at 
pre-construction. 

 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
No comment 
 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 252-264-6641 
Denied/Resubmit 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 9 of 11 

30



1. The area at the pond for the fire apparatus must be 20 feet wide and should take the 
measurements located in appendix d of the fire code. 

2. Need to see the calculations used for the fire pond capacity.  This should be in a sealed 
format.  More detail is needed in regards to dimensions of the dry hydrant. 

3. It appears that one cul-de-sac is less than 96 feet in diameter. 
 
Currituck County Code Enforcement, Stacey Smith 252-232-6027 
No comment 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 252-232-6020 
Approved 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 252-232-3007 
No comment 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
Reviewed 

1. Review of proposed land disturbance and development activities suggests that a CAMA 
Major Permit may be required.  Please contact Ron Renaldi at 264-3901 to discuss the 
project. 

 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
Reviewed 

1. The project area is located on a tract of land overlooking the North Landing River. Other 
archaeological sites are located in the general vicinity of the project area in a similar 
setting. The project tract is considered a high probability area for potentially significant 
archaeological resources. As a result, we recommend that the project approvals include 
the following conditions: 

a. Prior to initiation of any ground disturbing activities within the project area, the 
permittee shall arrange for an archaeological survey and assessment of the entire 
project area. The purpose of the survey will be to locate archaeological sites 
within the project area and to determine if they are significant in terms of the 
National Register of Historic Places.  

b. If a significant site is located within the project area the permittee shall determine 
whether the site will be adversely affected by the project activities; and, if so, 
develop and implement an appropriate mitigation plan. Two copies of all resulting 
archaeological reports, as well as one copy of the North Carolina site forms, 
should be forwarded to the Office of State Archaeology for review and comment 
as soon as they are available and in advance of any construction or ground 
disturbance activities.  

A list of archaeological consultants who have conducted or expressed an interest in 
contract work in North Carolina is available at www.arch.dcr.state.nc.us/consults.htm. 
The archaeologists listed, or any other experienced archaeologist, may be contacted 
to conduct the recommended survey. All activities associated with the archaeological 
investigations shall be coordinated with the Office of State Archaeology prior to 
beginning any archaeological fieldwork. 

 
 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 10 of 11 

31



Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 252-232-6603 
Reviewed 

1. Please consult with Kevin Carver, RS at 252-232-6603 concerning septic system and 
private well approval for each lot that will make up this proposed subdivision. 

 
US Army Corps of Engineers, Kyle Barnes 910-251-4584 
Reviewed 

1. Any impacts to jurisdictional waters or wetlands of the US require prior approval from the 
US Army Corps of Engineers. 

 
 
The following items are necessary for resubmittal: 

• 3 - full size copies of revised plans. 
• 10 - 11”x17” copies of revised plans. 
• 1- 8.5”x11” copy of all revised plans. 
• 1- PDF digital copy of all revised documents and plans. 

 
 
 

 
PB 12-10  East Point Estates 

Preliminary Plat 
Page 11 of 11 

32



33



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: December 3, 2012 

PB 12-20 Harbinger Land & Timber, LLC 
 
Note: The applicant requests that this case be reviewed under the existing UDO.  

The applicant is aware that completed applications for sketch plan and 
preliminary plat approval must be submitted prior to January 1, 2013 for the 
subdivision portion of the review to remain under the existing UDO. 

 
ITEM:   PB 12-20  Harbinger Land & Timber, LLC request for conditional zoning 

from Agricultural (A) and Residential (R) to Conditional District-Residential 
(CD-R) of 84 acres in Moyock on the west side of Poyners Road and north 
and south sides of Elrod Road.  
 

LOCATION: Moyock: Poyners Road and Elrod Road, Crawford Township. 

TAX ID: 0031-000-001A-0000 
 0031-000-001B-0000 
 0031-000-001D-0000 
 0031-000-015A-0000 
 0031-000-017A-0000 
 
OWNER:  Harbinger Land & Timber, LLC 
   PO Box 4 
   Harbinger NC  27941 
 
APPLICANT:  Eddie Hyman 
   Hyman & Robey 
   PO Box 339  
   Camden, NC  27921 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Current Zoning 
NORTH: Low Density Residential/Farmland R 
SOUTH Woodland/Low Density Residential/ 

Farmland 
A 

EAST:  Low Density Residential/Woodland R/A 
WEST: Low Density Residential/Woodland A 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Limited Service and 

Conservation within the Courthouse subarea. 
 

Areas designated as Limited Service are intended to provide for 
primarily residential development at low densities.  With respect to 
residential development, Limited Service areas allow for a maximum 
base density of 1 unit per acre but could be increased to 1.5 units per 
acre depending upon the availability of service facilities and the 
potential impact on the surrounding community. 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 1 of 10 

34



 
Areas designed as Rural are intended to provide for agriculture, 
forestry, and other allied uses traditionally associated with a rural 
area.  With respect to residential development, Rural areas allow for 
no more than 1 unit per 3 acres. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Land Use Plan is for the Courthouse subarea 
to continue to grow as a small community center.  Given the existing 
cluster of services and local government functions here, and the sizable 
area of developable land adjoining the sound, it is likely that the 
Courthouse area will continue to see limited growth over the next 
decade.    Residential development densities should be limited to 1-2 
units per acre where on-site wastewater is proposed. 
 
The following Land Use Plan policy statements support this request: 
 
Policy HN1:  Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at 
densities appropriate for the location.  LOCATION AND DENSITY 
FACTORS shall include whether the development is within an 
environmentally suitable area, the type of capacity of sewage 
treatment available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities 
providing access to the site, and the proximity of the site to existing 
and planned urban services. 
 
Policy HN8:  To protect the County’s tax base and to ensure the long-
term viability of the County’s neighborhoods and housing stock, the 
County will continue to enforce appropriate CONSTRUCTION AND SITE 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS for residential developments.  Such 
standards may include, for example, that all homes have a permanent 
masonry foundation (except where flood levels require elevation) and 
a pitched roof and overhang, and that local roads must be built to 
meet NCDOT acceptance standards. 
 

CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) and Residential (R)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  Conditional District – Residential (CD-R) 
  
CURRENT USE: Farmland and Woodland 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 84 Acres 
 
ZONING HISTORY: The 1989 Official Zoning Map zoned the property A and R.    
 
UTILITIES:   A water line runs along Poyners Road that serves this property.  

Individual on-site septic systems are proposed for the individual lots.      
 
TRANSPORTATION:  The property is accessed by Poyners Road and Elrod Road, both of 

which are state maintained roads. 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 2 of 10 

35



FLOOD ZONE: The property is located in a Shaded X flood zone (500-year 
floodplain) and AE (BFE 5.4’) flood zone. 

 
WETLANDS: According to the NC Division of Coastal Management maps, it appears 

that the majority of Parcel 0031-000-017A-0000 is wetlands.  
Delineation by an environmental professional will be required to verify 
the actual wetland locations. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils Map indicates the property contains Roanoke, 

Tomotley, Cape Fear, Dragston, Altavista, and Augusta soils.  Septic 
suitability ranges from suitable and marginally suitable to unsuitable.  The 
majority of the land appears to be marginally suitable to suitable for on-
site septic.  

 
PROPOSED DENSITY: 0.58 units per acre based on the total development site.   
 
PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 

1. The proposed use is a 54-lot single family subdivision having a minimum size of 
40,000 square feet and an overall density of 0.58 dwelling units/acre. 

2. Site built single family homes and a church with related church activities. 
 
COMMUNITY MEETING: 
A community meeting was held October 17, 2012 at 7:00 pm at the Moyock Library.  The 
neighborhood concerns include the proposed 40,000 sf lot sizes being smaller than the 
surrounding lot sizes, traffic on Elrod Road, soil limitations for on-site septic systems, and the 
potential incompatibility with an existing home based seafood business. 
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The TRC recommends approval of the request to rezone 84 acres from Agricultural (A) and 
Residential (R) to Conditional District – Residential (CD-R) provided the following items are 
addressed: 
 

1. Since Tulls Creek Road is a Minor Collector Street, the number of driveways is limited by 
the UDO.  Two driveways will be allowed onto Tulls Creek Road for the three lots that 
have frontage on Tulls Creek Road since they have a combined total of approximately 
825’ of street frontage.  (UDO Section 9.1.5.3)  Cross-access easements will be necessary 
for the shared driveways. 

2. Double frontage lots require a non-access buffer along the most travelled road.  (UDO 
Section 2.6.3) 

3. It appears that lots 30-33 and possibly lot 19 are in the Conservation Land Use 
Classification in which density is limited to no more than 1 unit per 3 acres by the Land Use 
Plan.  This may reduce the number of lots allowed in that area.   

4. Correct the flood zone to AE 5.4’ 
5. Consider additional buffering (i.e. open space, vegetation) adjacent to approved 

commercial fishing use. 
6. Fire hydrants must be within 500' of every inch of road frontage. Fire hydrant must be 

within 400' of all exterior portions of public structures (church). Access to more than two 
single family dwellings must be 20'' capable of 75,000 lbs. 

7. Contact the Water Dept. on waterline extension requirements. 
 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 3 of 10 

36



PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-20 with the Technical Review Committee 
recommendations as presented. 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 4 of 10 

37



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (11-13-12)  
Mr. Hyman stated this is a conditional zoning and they are trying to bring the concept now for 
everyone to see what they are proposing for the site. The allowable density is 1.5 units per acre. 
Mr. Hyman discussed the community meeting and is in agreement with the technical review 
committee recommendations.  Mr. Hyman stated access will be provided to the cemetery.  
 
Ms. Rose stated she and her family live on property adjacent to this proposed subdivision. Ms. 
Rose and her husband operate a commercial fishing operation that was established in 1999.  Ms. 
Rose stated they have not received any complaints regarding their business, but at times the smell 
can be bad.  She is concerned with the closeness of the proposed subdivision to their property. 
This subdivision is out of character with the surrounding area. Ms. Rose stated if the property is to 
be developed she would like for it to remain agricultural and residential.    
 
Mr. Smithson is opposed to the conditional zoning request because of the density.  Mr. Smithson is 
concerned about the infrastructure.  
 
Mr. Hancock is concerned with the density, infrastructure, and traffic on Tulls Creek Road.  
 
Mr. Banks stated this proposed subdivision is out of character with the surrounding area and 
concerned with the density. 
 
Mr. Rose stated he owes the commercial fishing business. Mr. Rose is concerned with traffic, soil 
suitable for septic, and not consistent with the surrounding area.    
 
Mr. Old stated he supports this request and it will bring jobs to the area.  
 
Ms. Peters stated she is concerned with the density and agrees with previous comments.  
 
Mr. Hyman stated they plan to be compassionate to the commercial fishing business and buyers 
will be made aware of the business. Mr. Hyman talked about the density. The county has 
adequate facilities to support this subdivision. NCDOT will have a chance to review this plat as it 
moves forward and make any suggestions. 
 
Mr. Cooper asked if anything has been decided for the proposed buffer. 
 
Mr. Hyman stated a swale with some sort of vegetation.  
 
Mr. Bell asked if something could be put on the plat to notify potential buyers if a lot adjoins a 
commercial fishing business. 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 5 of 10 

38



 
 
 
 

 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 6 of 10 

39



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 7 of 10 

40



MEMORANDUM 
  
To:   Eddie Hyman, Hyman and Robey 
 Gary Dunstan, Harbinger Land and Timber 
  
From:  Planning Staff 
  
Date:  August 9, 2012 
  
Re:   Harbinger Land and Timber – Conditional Zoning 
   
The following comments have been received for the August 15, 2012 TRC meeting.  Modifications 
of the request must be submitted by August 20, 2012 in order to remain on the September 11, 
2012 Planning Board agenda.   TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC 
meeting. 
  
Currituck County Planning (Tammy Glave, 252-232-6025): 
Reviewed with requirements and suggested conditions 

Requirement: 
1. Since Tulls Creek Road is a Minor Collector Street, the number of driveways is limited 

by the UDO.  Two driveways will be allowed onto Tulls Creek Road for the six lots 
that have frontage on Tulls Creek Road since they have a combined total of 
approximately 825’ of street frontage.  (UDO Section 9.1.5.3)  Cross-access 
easements will be necessary for the shared driveways. 

2. Lots A12 and B6 will require a 5’ non-access buffer along Poyners Road and will have 
to access from Elrod Road.  (UDO Section 2.6.3) 

3. A community meeting is required for a conditional zoning request prior to the Planning 
Board meeting.  Please provide a copy of the mailed notice of this meeting that was 
sent to the adjoining property owners. 

Suggested condition: 
1. Set a maximum number of lots for the development. 

 
Currituck County Code Enforcement (Stacey Smith, 252-232-6027) 
Reviewed with no comment. 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections (Spence Castello, 252-232-6020) 
Approved without comment. 
  
Currituck County Emergency Management, Fire Marshal (James Mims, 252-232-4024) 
Approved with comment: 

1. Fire hydrants must be within 500' of every inch of road frontage. Fire hydrant must be 
within 400' of all exterior portions of public structures (church). Access to more than 
two single family dwellings must be 20'' capable of 75,000 lbs. 

Currituck County Engineering (Eric Weatherly, 252-232-6034) 
Approved with comments: 

1. Please be aware of the differences in stormwater requirements between the Old and New 
UDO. 

2. Contact the Water Dept. on waterline extension requirements. 
 
 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 8 of 10 

41



Currituck County GIS (Harry Lee, 252-232-2034) 
Reviewed with no comment. 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation (Jason Weeks, 252-232-3007) 
Reviewed with no comment. 
 
Currituck County Soil and Water (Mike Doxey, 252-232-2769) 
Approved without comment. 
 
Currituck County Utilities (Pat Irwin, 252-232-2769) 
Approved without comment. 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services (Joe Hobbs, 252-232-6603) 
Reviewed with comment: 

1. PLEASE CONSULT WITH KEVIN CARVER R.S. AT (252)232-6603 CONCERNING SITE 
EVALUATION AND SEPTIC SYSTEM APPROVAL FOR EACH LOT THAT WILL MAKE UP 
THIS PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION. THANK YOU. 

 
NC Division of Coastal Management (Charlan Owens, 252-264-3901) 
Reviewed without comment. 
 
 NC State Archeology (Lawrence Abbott, 919-807-6554) 
Reviewed with comment: 

1. It is unlikely that a significant site will be impacted by the proposed work. An 
archaeological survey is not recommended. 

 
 
The following items are necessary for resubmittal: 

• 15 - full size copies of revised plans.  
• 1- 8.5”x11” copy of all revised plans.  
• 1- PDF digital copy of all revised documents and plans.  

 
 

  

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 9 of 10 

42



 

 
PB 12-20 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 10 of 10 

43



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners  
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: November 21, 2012 
 
Subject:  PB12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 
 
The enclosed text amendment submitted by the Currituck County Planning and Community Development 
Department is intended to amend miscellaneous sections of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 
related to Flood Damage Prevention.  The proposed amendments have been identified by staff and 
through extensive input by the North Carolina Floodplain Program.  The proposed changes are the 
minimum necessary to remain compliant in the National Flood Insurance program and with the NC 
Floodplain Program.     

By participating in the National Flood Insurance Program, residents are eligible for federally back 
flood insurance through FEMA.  Currituck County also participates in the voluntary, Community Rating 
System Program.  Through participation in this program, residents receive a 10% discount on flood 
insurance premiums.  However, participation in the National Flood Insurance Program is a minimum 
requirement for eligibility in the Community Rating System.   

The proposed amendments include: 

33. Clarifying how future revisions to the flood maps are adopted 
34. Clarifying the flood related duties of the Planning Director 
35. Clarifying the necessary documentation required by NC Floodplain Mapping program to be 

present on a floodplain development permit and the length of time a floodplain permit is valid. 
36. Clarification of grounds of denial for variances from the flood  
37. Addition and clarification of the flood development standards 
38. Clarification of the enforcement procedures for revocation of floodplain development permits 
39.  Addition and clarification of definitions  
 
Many people think that if they do not live near a river or on the Outer Banks, they are not in danger of 
flooding.  This is not true.  Flooding is the nation’s number one natural disaster, and it occurs inland and 
on the coast. Twenty to 25 percent of all flood insurance claims filed are outside of a special flood 
hazard area.  There is also a 26 percent chance of experiencing a flood during the life of a 30-year 
mortgage in high-risk flood areas (A or V zones).  Anywhere it rains, it can flood.  

The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their November 13, 2012 meeting. 

 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 1 of 25 

44



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (11-13-12) 
Ms. White provided an overview of the text amendment. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 2 of 25 

45



 
Currituck County 

PB 12-05 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 1: General Provisions, Chapter 2: 
Administration, Chapter 7: Environmental Protection, Chapter 9: Enforcement, and Chapter 10: 
Definitions and Measurement to update the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that the 
Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 33:  That Section 1.7.2 is amended by adding the following underlined language and deleting the 
following strikethrough language: 
 

1.7.2  Incorporated by Reference 

AA..  An Official Zoning Map and all the notations thereon is incorporated 
herein by reference and made part of this Ordinance. 

BB..  The Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) prepared by the State and the 
associated Flood Insurance Study (FIS) that were adopted on December 
16, 2005 (as amended), are incorporated herein by reference and made 
part of this ordinance.  Future revisions to the FIS and FIRM panels that do 
not change flood hazard data within the jurisdictional authority of 
Currituck County are also adopted by reference and declared to be 
part of this ordinance.   

 
Item 34:  That Section 2.2.6 is amended by adding the following underlined language and deleting the 
following strikethrough language: 
 

2.2.6 Planning Director 

The Planning Director shall have the following powers and duties: 

AA..  Powers and Duties 

((33))  Floodplain Administrator 
The Planning Director shall serve as the Floodplain Administrator, 
and shall perform the following duties: 

((aa))  Review all floodplain development applications for receipt 
of all necessary State and Federal permits and issue 
floodplain development permits for all proposed 
development within special flood hazard areas. 

((bb))  Notify adjacent communities and the North Carolina 
Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency 
Management, State Coordinator for the National Flood 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 3 of 25 

46



Insurance Program prior to any alteration or relocation of a 
watercourse, and submit evidence of such notification to 
FEMA. 

((cc))  Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or 
relocated portion of said watercourse so that the flood-
carrying capacity is maintained. 

((dd))  Prevent encroachments into floodways and non-
encroachment areas unless the certification and flood 
damage prevention standards of Section 7.4, Flood 
Damage Prevention, are met. 

((ee))  Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of 
the reference level (including basement) and all attendant 
utilities of all new and substantially improved structures in 
accordance with Section 7.4.5, Flood Certificates. 

((ff))  Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to 
which all new and substantially improved structures and 
public utilities have been floodproofed, in accordance 
with the standards in Section 7.4.5, Flood Certificates 

((gg))  Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of 
all public utilities in accordance with the standards of 
Section 7.4.5, Flood Certificates. 

((hh))  When floodproofing is utilized for a particular structure, 
obtain certifications from a registered professional engineer 
or architect in accordance with Section 7.4.5, Flood 
Certificates, and Section 7.4.6, Standards. 

((ii))  Obtain, review, and utilize any base flood elevation data, 
along with floodway data or non-encroachment area 
data available to administer the flood damage prevention 
provisions. 

((jj))  Interpret the exact location of boundaries of the special 
flood hazard areas, floodways, or non-encroachment 
areas (for example, where there appears to be a conflict 
between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions.  
The person contesting the location of the boundary may 
appeal the interpretation in accordance with Section2.4.17 
Appeal. 

((kk))  When base flood elevation   data has not been provided 
in accordance with the standards of Section 7.4, Flood 
Damage Prevention, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize 
any base flood elevation  data, along with floodway data 
or non-encroachment area data available from a Federal, 
State, or other source, including data developed pursuant 
to Section 7.4.6 E, Standards for Riverine Floodplains without 
Established Floodways or Non-encroachment Area, in 
order to administer the standards of this ordinance. 

((ll))  When base flood elevation   data is provided but no 
floodway or non-encroachment area data has been 
provided in accordance with the standards of Section 7.4, 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 4 of 25 

47



Flood Damage Prevention, obtain, review, and reasonably 
utilize any floodway data or non-encroachment area data 
available from a Federal, State, or other source in order to 
administer the standards of this ordinance.   

((mm))  Permanently maintain all records that pertain to the 
administration of the flood damage prevention standards 
and make these records available for public inspection, 
except for any information protected by the Privacy Act of 
1974. 

((nn))  Make on-site inspections of work in progress, issue stop-
work orders, or revoke floodplain development permits, as 
required.  

((oo))  Make periodic inspections throughout the special flood 
hazard area. 

((pp))  Maintain a current map repository to include, but not 
limited to, the FIS Report, FIRM, Letters of Map Change, and 
other official flood maps and studies. 

((qq))  Coordinate revisions to FIS reports and FIRMs, including 
Letters of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-Fs) and Letters 
of Map Revision (LOMRs). 

 
 
 
Item 35:  That Section 2.4.12 is amended by adding the following underlined language and deleting 
the following strikethrough language: 

2.4.12 Floodplain Development Permit 

DD..  Floodplain Development Permit Review Standards 
A floodplain development permit shall be approved only upon a finding 
that all of the following standards are met:  

((11))  The permit is issued prior to the commencement of development; 

((22))  The development proposed within the special flood hazard area 
complies with the standards in Section 7.4, Flood Damage 
Prevention, and all other applicable standards in this Ordinance 
and the County Code of Ordinances; and 

((33))  The floodplain development permit includes: 
((aa))  A description of development to be permitted under the 

floodplain development permit. 

((bb))  The special flood hazard area determination for the 
proposed development in accordance with available 
data specified in Section 7.4, Flood Damage Prevention. 

((cc))  The regulatory flood protection elevation required for the 
reference level, all attendant utilities, and the protection of 
all public utilities as applicable. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 5 of 25 

48



((dd))  All certification submittal requirements with appropriate 
timelines. 

((ee))  A statement that no fill material or other development shall 
encroach into the floodway or non-encroachment area of 
any watercourse, as applicable.  

((ff))  Flood openings requirements, if in flood zones A or AE. 
 

((44))  There will be no alteration of primary or frontal sand dunes (other 
than that associated with dune restoration) or fill used for 
structural support for development in a VE flood zone. 

GG..  Expiration of Approval 
Applicable (see Section 2.3.15).Approval of a floodplain development 
permit shall automatically expire if the development activity it authorizes 
is not commenced within six months after the date of approval. 

 
 
 
Item 36: That Section 2.4.14 is amended by adding the following underlined language and 
deleting the following strikethrough language: 

2.4.14 Variance 

FF..  Variances from Flood Damage Prevention Standards 

((33))  Grounds for Denial of a Flood Damage Prevention Variance 
Request 

All of the following factors shall be taken into account when 
denying a request for a flood damage prevention variance: 

((aa))  The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands 
to the injury of others; 

((bb))  The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion 
damage; 

((cc))  The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to 
flood damage and the effect of such damage on the 
individual owner; 

((dd))  The importance of the services provided by the proposed 
facility to the community; 

((ee))  The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location as a 
functionally-dependent facility; 

((ff))  The availability of alternative locations, not subject to 
flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use; 

((gg))  The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and 
anticipated development; 

((hh))  The relationship of the proposed use to the Land Use Plan 
and the county’s floodplain management program; 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 6 of 25 

49



((ii))  The safety of access to the use property in times of flood for 
ordinary and emergency vehicles; 

((jj))  The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and 
sediment transport of the floodwaters and the effects of 
wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and 

((kk))  The costs of providing governmental services during and 
after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of 
public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical 
and water systems, and streets and bridges. 

 
 
Item 37: That Section 7.4 Flood Damage Prevention is amended by adding the following underlined 
language and deleting the following strikethrough language: 

77..44..  FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION 

7.4.1 Purpose and Intent 

The purpose and intent of the flood damage prevention standards is to 
promote public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize public and 
private losses due to flood conditions within flood prone areas by standards 
designed to: 

AA..  Restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, and 
property due to water or erosion hazards or that result in damaging 
increases in erosion, flood heights, or velocities; 

BB..  Require that uses vulnerable to floods be protected against flood 
damage at the time of initial construction; 

CC..  Control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and 
natural protective barriers, which are involved in the accommodation of 
floodwaters; 

DD..  Control filling, grading, dredging, and all other development that may 
increase erosion or flood damage; and 

EE..  Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that will unnaturally 
divert flood waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands. 

7.4.2 Applicability 

The standards in this section shall apply to all lands within the special flood 
hazard area, as depicted in the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) for Currituck 
County, which are included as part of the Official Zoning Map, and 
incorporated by reference into this Ordinance. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 7 of 25 

50



7.4.3 Floodplain Development Permit Required 

AA..  Development subject to the standards in this section shall obtain a 
floodplain development permit (see Section 2.4.12) prior to the 
commencement of construction or any land-disturbing activities.  

BB..  Development subject to these standards shall not be established, 
extended, converted, altered, or occupied in any way without full 
compliance with the requirements of this section. 

7.4.4 Special Flood Hazard Area Zones 

All lands within the Currituck County special flood hazard area are located 
within one of four different special flood hazard area zones, as depicted on the 
county’s FIRM maps.  Each flood zone is a geographic area in the county 
subject to a unique type and severity of flood.  Each flood zone has unique 
standards, elevation certificate requirements, or both.  Applicants for 
development within the special flood hazard area should consult the FIRM to 
determine the applicable flood zone where their land is located.  The different 
flood zones are described below. 

AA..  VE Zone 
Lands within a VE zone are areas generally adjacent to a body of water 
that may experience flooding as well as wave action.  Lands in a VE 
zone are subject to the coastal high hazard zone standards in addition 
to the general flood damage prevention standards in Section 7.4.6, 
Standards.  

BB..  AE Zone 
Lands within AE zone are areas that may experience  flooding, but no 
wave action.  The FIRM maps indicate a base flood elevation in this zone 
below which habitable residential space is prohibited. 

CC..  A Zone (No Base Flood Elevation) 
Lands within A zones are areas that may be subject to flooding, but not 
subject to wave action during a storm event.  Lands in an A Zone are 
subject to the standards for floodplains without established base flood 
elevations in addition to general flood damage prevention standards in 
Section 7.4.6, Standards. 

DD..  AEFW Zone (Floodway) 
Lands within the AEFW zone are areas adjacent to a river or stream that 
are located within a floodway or other non-encroachment area.  Areas 
within the AEFW may or may not have an established base flood 
elevation depicted on the FIRM map, and are subject to the standards 
in Section 7.4.6.C, or 7.4.6.D, (as appropriate) as well as the general 
flood damage prevention standards in Section 7.4.6.A, General 
Standards. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 8 of 25 

51



7.4.5 Flood Certificates / Certifications 

All development within a special flood hazard area shall obtain all required 
flood certificates or certifications in accordance with this section and Table 
7.4.5, Flood Certificates. 

TTAABBLLEE  77..44..55::  FFLLOOOODD  CCEERRTTIIFFIICCAATTEESS  

CERTIFICATE 
TYPE 

TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT SUBJECT TO 
REQUIREMENT  

FLOOD 
ZONE 

WHERE 
REQUIRED 

TIMING 

Elevation 
Certificate 

All residential and 
nonresidential development 

[1] A, AE, VE, 
AEFW [3] 

Under construction- within 
seven days of establishing 

reference level  required prior 
to scheduling rough in 

inspection; 
As-built – required prior to 

occupancy 

Floodproofing 
Certificate 

All nonresidential development 
with floor area below base 

flood elevation [1] [2] 
Prior to start of construction 

Foundation 
Certification 

Manufactured home with 
chassis 36 inches or more 

above grade [4] 
A, AE 

Prior to placement of home on 
foundation  issuance of 

building permit. 
Watercourse 
Alteration 
Certification 

Development seeking to alter 
or relocate a watercourse 

A, AE, 
AEFW, VE 

Prior to floodplain 
development permit 

V-Zone 
Certificate 

All residential and 
nonresidential development VE Required as part of Building 

Permit 
NOTES: 
[1] Recreation vehicles, temporary structures, and accessory structures less than 150 square 
feet in area in the A and AE flood zones must comply with the standards of this section, but 
are exempted from elevation and flood-proofing certificate requirements 
[2] Development subject to a floodproofing certificate is not required to obtain an elevation 
certificate 
[3] Floodproofing is not permitted within the VE zone 
[4] Manufactured homes are not permitted in the VE zone 

 

AA..  Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31) 

((11))  Building Under Construction 

((aa))  Prior to scheduling rough in inspection, Within seven 
calendar days of establishment of the reference level 
elevation, the applicant shall submit a certification of the 
elevation of the reference level, in relation to mean sea 
level to the Planning Director.  

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 9 of 25 

52



((bb))  The Planning Director shall review the certificate and note 
any errors. Errors shall be corrected prior to further work 
proceeding.  Any work done within the seven day period 
or prior to submission of the reference level certification 
shall be at the applicant’s risk. 

((cc))  Failure to submit the certification or make required 
corrections shall result in issuance of a stop-work order for 
the development. 

((22))  Finished Construction 

((aa))  Prior to scheduling final inspection, the applicant shall 
submit a final as-built certification of the elevation of the 
reference level and all associated utilities to the Planning 
Director.  The Planning Director shall review the certificate 
and note any errors.  

((bb))  Errors shall be corrected by the permit holder prior to 
occupancy of the building.  In some instances, an 
additional certification may be required to certify the 
corrected as-built construction. 

((cc))  Failure to submit the certification or make required 
corrections shall delay occupancy of the building. 

BB..  Flood-Proofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65) 

((11))  Applicants for new nonresidential development employing 
floodproofing to meet regulatory flood protection elevation 
requirements within a special flood hazard area shall submit a 
certification of the floodproofed design elevation, in relation to 
mean sea level, with supporting data, an operational plan, and 
an inspection and maintenance plan,   to the Planning Director 
prior to issuance of a floodplain development permit.   

((22))  The certification of the floodproofed design elevation of the 
reference level and all attendant utilities in relation to mean sea 
level shall be prepared by a professional engineer or architect. 

((33))  The Planning Director shall review the certificate, operational 
plan, and inspection and maintenance plan and note any errors.  

((44))  Errors shall be corrected by the applicant prior to issuance of a 
floodplain development permit.   

((55))  Failure to submit the certification or make required corrections 
shall result in denial of a floodplain development permit 
application. 

((66))  Failure to construct in accordance with the certified design shall 
be cause to withhold the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  

 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 10 of 25 

53



CC..  Foundation Certification 
If a manufactured home is placed within A or AE flood zones, and the 
elevation of the chassis is more than 36 inches in height above grade, an 
engineered foundation certification shall be required prior to 
occupancy of the home issuance of a building permit in accordance 
with the standards of Section 7.4.6.4, Manufactured Homes. 
 

DD..  Watercourse Alteration Certification (No-Rise) 
Relocation or alteration of a watercourse shall require submittal of a 
map showing the location of the proposed watercourse alteration or 
relocation, description of the extent, and a certified report from a 
professional engineer on the effects of the proposed project on the 
flood-carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to properties 
located both upstream and downstream. 
 

EE..  V-Zone Certificate 

((11))  Applicants for new development within coastal high hazard area 
(VE zone) shall submit a V-Zone certificate, prepared by a 
professional engineer or architect, with accompanying design 
plans and specifications, demonstrating the standards of this 
subsection are met prior to issuance of a floodplain development 
permit. 

((22))  Development within coastal high hazard areas shall also be 
required to provide an elevation certificate in accordance with 
subsection (A) above, where applicable. 

7.4.6 Standards 

AA..  General Standards 

((11))  Standards Applied to All Development 

((aa))  All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 
designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to 
prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the 
structure. 

((bb))  All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 
constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant 
to flood damage in accordance with the current Technical 
Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements, 
and available from the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency. 

((cc))  All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 
constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood 
damages. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 11 of 25 

54



((dd))  Electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning 
equipment, and other service facilities shall be designed 
and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or 
accumulating within the components during conditions of 
flooding to the base flood elevation regulatory flood 
protection elevation.  These include, but are not limited to, 
HVAC equipment, water softener units, bath/kitchen 
fixtures, ductwork, electric/gas meter panels/boxes, 
utility/cable boxes, hot water heaters, and electric 
outlets/switches. 

((ee))  All new and replacement water supply systems shall be 
designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters 
into the system. 

((ff))  New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be 
designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters 
into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood 
waters. 

((gg))  On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and 
constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination 
from them during flooding. 

((hh))  Nothing in this Ordinance shall prevent the repair, 
reconstruction, or replacement of a building or structure 
existing on January 1, 2013 and located totally or partially 
within the floodway, non-encroachment area, or stream 
setback, provided there is no additional encroachment 
below the base flood elevation regulatory flood protection 
elevation in the floodway, non-encroachment area, or 
stream setback, and provided that such repair, 
reconstruction, or replacement meets all of the other 
requirements of this Ordinance. 

((ii))  All developments shall be consistent with the need to 
minimize flood damage. 

((jj))  All developments shall have public utilities and facilities 
such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located 
and constructed to minimize flood damage. 

((kk))  All developments shall have adequate drainage provided 
to reduce exposure to flood hazards. 

((ll))  All developments shall have received all necessary permits 
required by Federal or State law, including Section 404 of 
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 
1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334. 

((mm))  When a new structure is partially located in the special 
flood hazard area, the entire structure shall meet the 
requirements in this section. 

((nn))  When a structure is located in multiple flood zones or in a 
flood zone with multiple base flood elevations, the 
standards for the more restrictive flood zone and the 
highest base flood elevation shall apply. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 12 of 25 

55



((oo))  Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a 
structure, which is in compliance with the standards of this 
ordinance, shall meet the requirements of “new 
construction” as contained in this ordinance.   

((pp))  New solid waste facilities and sites, hazardous waste 
management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical 
storage facilities shall not be permitted, except by variance 
as specified in Section 2.4.14.F, Variance from Flood 
Protection Standards. A structure or tank for chemical or 
fuel storage incidental to an allowed use or to the 
operation of a water treatment plant or wastewater 
treatment facility may be located in a special flood hazard 
area only if the structure or tank is either elevated or 
floodproofed to at least the regulatory flood protection 
elevation and certified in accordance with the standards 
of this ordinance.  

((22))  Residential Development 
In addition to the general standards applied to all development in 
(1) above, new construction and substantial improvement of any 
residential structure (including manufactured homes) shall have 
the reference level, including basement, elevated no lower than 
the base flood elevation regulatory flood protection elevation. 

((33))  Nonresidential Development 

((aa))  In addition to the general standards applied to all 
development in (1) above, new construction and 
substantial improvement of any commercial, industrial, or 
other non-residential structure shall have the reference 
level, including basement, elevated no lower than the 
base flood elevation regulatory flood protection elevation 
depicted on the applicable FIRM map. 

((bb))  Structures located in A or AE flood zones may be 
floodproofed to the base flood elevation regulatory flood 
protection elevation in lieu of elevation, provided that all 
areas of the structure, together with attendant utility and 
sanitary facilities, below the base flood elevation are 
watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the 
passage of water, using structural components having the 
capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads 
and the effect of buoyancy. 

((cc))  A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify 
that the floodproofing standards of this subsection are 
satisfied in accordance with Section 7.5.4.B, Flood-Proofing 
Certificate.   
 

((44))  Manufactured Homes 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 13 of 25 

56



In addition to the general standards applied to all development in 
(1) above, new and replacement manufactured homes in a 
special flood hazard area shall: 

((aa))  Be elevated so that the reference level of the 
manufactured home is no lower than the base flood 
elevation regulatory flood protection elevation. 

((bb))  Be securely anchored to an adequately anchored 
foundation to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 
movement, either by certified engineered foundation 
system, or in accordance with the most current edition of 
the State of North Carolina Regulations for Manufactured 
Homes adopted by the Commissioner of Insurance 
pursuant to NCGS 143-143.15.   

((cc))  Be supported by reinforced piers or an engineered 
foundation when the chassis is elevated 36 inches or less 
above grade. 

((dd))  Be subject to a foundation certification (see Section 7.4.5) 
when the chassis is elevated more than 36 inches above 
grade. 

((ee))  Ensure all enclosures or skirting below the lowest floor meet 
the requirements of Section 7.4.6.A.8, Enclosures Below the 
Base Flood Elevated Buildings. 

((ff))  Be subject to an evacuation plan approved by the 
Planning Director and the county’s Emergency 
Management Coordinator if located within a new, 
substantially improved, or substantially damaged 
manufactured home park or subdivision. 

 

((55))  Accessory Structures 
In addition to the general standards applied to all development in 
(1) above, accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc.) 
in the special flood hazard area shall comply with the following 
standards: 

((aa))  Portions of an accessory structure below the base flood 
elevation shall not be used for human habitation (including 
working, sleeping, living, cooking or restroom areas); 

((bb))  Portions of an accessory structure below the base flood 
elevation shall not be temperature-controlled; 

((cc))  Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood 
damage potential; 

((dd))  Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on 
the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to 
the flow of floodwaters; 

((ee))  Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent 
floatation, collapse, and lateral movement; 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 14 of 25 

57



((ff))  All service facilities, such as electrical service, shall be 
installed to prevent water from entering or accumulating 
within the components; and 

((gg))  Flood openings to facilitate automatic equalization of 
hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided below the base 
flood elevation regulatory flood protection elevation (see 
Section 7.4.6.A.8, Enclosures Below the Base Flood Elevation 
Elevated Buildings). 

((66))  Temporary Nonresidential Structures 
Prior to the issuance of a floodplain development permit for a 
temporary nonresidential structure in the special flood hazard 
area, the applicant shall submit a plan for the removal of the 
structure(s) in the event of a hurricane, flash flood, or other type of 
flood warning notification that includes the following: 

((aa))  The name, address, and phone number of the individual 
responsible for the removal of the temporary structure; 

((bb))  The time frame prior to the event at which a structure will 
be removed (i.e., minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a 
hurricane or immediately upon flood warning notification); 

((cc))  A copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with the 
entity responsible for physical removal of the structure; and 

((dd))  The location outside the special flood hazard area where 
the temporary structure will be moved. 

((ee))  A specified time period for which the temporary use will be 
permitted.  Time specified may not exceed three months, 
renewable up to one year. 
 

((77))  Recreational Vehicles 
Recreational vehicles shall: 

((aa))  Be on site for fewer than 90 consecutive days, be fully 
licensed, and ready for highway use (i.e., be on its wheels 
or jacking system, be attached to the site only by quick 
disconnect type utilities, and have no permanently 
attached additions); or 

((bb))  Meet the requirements in this section for new residential 
construction. 

((88))  Enclosures Below the Base Flood Elevation Elevated Buildings 
Any fully enclosed area of new construction or substantially 
improved structure, any portion of which is below the base flood 
elevation lowest floor shall: 

((aa))  Not be designed or used for human habitation, but shall 
only be used for parking of vehicles, building access, or 
limited storage of maintenance equipment used in 
connection with the premises; 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 15 of 25 

58



((bb))  Be served by access that is the minimum necessary to 
allow for parking of vehicles (garage door) or limited 
storage of maintenance equipment (standard exterior 
door), or entry to the living area (stairway or elevator); 

((cc))  Not be finished or partitioned into separate rooms, except 
to enclose storage areas; 

((dd))  Be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials, in 
accordance with Technical Bulletin 2: Flood Damage 
Resistant Materials Requirements, at least to the base flood 
elevation regulatory flood protection elevation; 

((ee))  Include flood openings, when located in the A and AE 
flood zones, that automatically equalize hydrostatic flood 
forces on walls by allowing for the entry and exit of 
floodwaters. To meet this standard, the openings must 
either be certified by a professional engineer or architect 
to meet or exceed the following minimum design criteria: 

((ii))  A minimum of two flood openings on different sides 
of each enclosed area subject to flooding; 

((iiii))  The total net area of all flood openings must be at 
least one square inch for each square foot of 
enclosed area subject to flooding; 

((iiiiii))  If a building has more than one enclosed area, 
each enclosed area must have flood openings to 
allow floodwaters to automatically enter and exit; 

((iivv))  The bottom of all required flood openings shall be 
no higher than one foot above the adjacent grade; 

((vv))  Flood openings may be equipped with screens, 
louvers, or other coverings or devices, provided they 
permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both 
directions;  

((vvii))  Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not 
considered enclosures for regulatory purposes, and, 
therefore, do not require flood openings.  Masonry 
or wood underpinning, regardless of structural status, 
is considered an enclosure and requires flood 
openings as outlined above; and 

((ff))  Be either free of obstruction or constructed with 
breakaway walls, open wood latticework, or insect 
screening, when located in a VE zone.  To meet this 
standard, breakaway walls shall not be part of the 
structural support of the building and be designed so as to 
breakaway, under abnormally high tides or wave action 
without causing damage to the elevated portion of the 
building or supporting foundation system or otherwise 
jeopardizing the structural integrity of the building, in 
accordance with the following: 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 16 of 25 

59



((ii))  Design safe loading resistance shall be not less than 
10 nor more than 20 pounds per square foot; or 

((iiii))  Breakaway walls that exceed a design safe loading 
resistance of 20 pounds per square foot (either by 
design or when so required by State or local codes) 
shall be certified by a registered professional 
engineer or architect that the breakaway wall will 
collapse from a water load less than that which 
would occur during the base flood event, and the 
elevated portion of the building and supporting 
foundation system shall not be subject to collapse, 
displacement, or other structural damage due to 
the effects of wind and water loads acting 
simultaneously on all building components 
(structural and non-structural).  The water loading 
values used shall be those associated with the base 
flood.  The wind loading values used shall be those 
required by the North Carolina State Building Code. 

((99))  Additions or Improvements to Existing Buildings 
Repairs, additions, or alterations to an existing building in the 
special flood hazard area shall be subject to the following 
standards: 

((aa))  Substantial Additions or Improvements 
When a portion of a building within the special flood 
hazard area is subject to substantial additions or 
improvements, the entire building shall be made to 
conform with all applicable standards in Section 7.4.6, 
Standards, including but not limited to compliance with the 
base flood elevation standards.  

((bb))  Non-Substantial Additions or Improvements 

((ii))  Pre-FIRM Buildings 
Additions or improvements to a portion of a pre-
FIRM building that are not substantial are not 
required to comply with the standards in Section 
7.4.6, Standards, but must be designed to minimize 
flood damage and shall not worsen any existing 
nonconformities with respect to the building’s 
compliance with the flood damage prevention 
standards. 

((iiii))  Post-FIRM Building Additions 

((AA))  All additions to post-FIRM buildings shall 
comply with the standards for new 
construction. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 17 of 25 

60



((BB))  Additions to post-FIRM buildings with no 
modifications to the existing structure other 
than a standard door in the common wall 
shall require only the addition to comply with 
the standards for new construction. 

((iiiiii))  Post-FIRM Building Improvements 
Improvements qualifying as substantial 
improvements or alterations that worsen an existing 
nonconformity must comply with the standards for 
new construction. 

((cc))  Timing of Post-FIRM Structures 
Development having a start of construction date of 
November 1, 1984 shall be considered as a post-FIRM 
structure for the purposes of these standards. 

BB..  Standards for Coastal High Hazard Areas (VE Zones) 
VE flood zones have special flood hazards associated with high velocity 
waters from storm surges or seismic activity and, therefore, all new 
construction and substantial repairs improvements or alterations shall 
comply with the standards in Section 7.4.6.A, General Standards, and 
the following requirements: 

((11))  CAMA Setbacks 
Development shall comply with all applicable CAMA setback 
requirements, including a location landward of the mean high 
tideline and the first line of stable natural vegetation; 

((22))  Base Flood Elevation 
Development shall be elevated so that the bottom of the lowest 
horizontal structural member of the lowest floor (excluding pilings 
or columns) is no lower than the base flood regulatory flood 
protection elevation (floodproofing shall not be utilized on any 
structures in the VE zone); 

((33))  Free of Obstruction 
Development shall ensure the space below the lowest floor 
remains free of obstruction so as not to impede the flow of flood 
waters, with the following exceptions: 

((aa))  Open wood latticework or insect screening below the 
lowest floor for aesthetic purposes only provided it is 
designed to wash away in the event of abnormal wave 
action;  

((bb))  Breakaway walls, provided they comply with the standards 
in Section7.4.6.A.8, Enclosures Below the Base Flood 
Elevation regulatory flood protection elevation; or 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 18 of 25 

61



((cc))  Development constructed at grade when the grade 
elevation exceeds the applicable base flood elevation 
regulatory flood protection elevation, provided it utilizes 
grade-beam or pile-supported slab construction. 

((44))  Foundations 

((aa))  Development shall be securely anchored to pile or column 
foundations.  All pilings and columns and the structure 
attached thereto shall be anchored to resist flotation, 
collapse, and lateral movement due to the effect of wind 
and water loads acting simultaneously on all building 
components. 

((bb))  A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify 
that the design, specifications and plans for construction 
are in compliance with the standards in this section. 

((cc))  In determining the load calculations: 

((ii))  Water loading values used shall be those associated 
with the base flood.  

((iiii))  Wind loading values used shall be those required by 
the current edition of the North Carolina State 
Building Code. 
 

((55))  Use of Fill 
Fill shall not be used for structural support.  Limited non-
compacted and non-stabilized fill may be used outside the 
perimeter of a building, provided it is demonstrated through 
coastal engineering analysis that the proposed fill would not result 
in any increase in the base flood elevation and not cause any 
adverse impacts by wave ramping or deflection to the subject 
structure or adjacent properties. 

((66))  Alteration of Dunes 
There shall be no alteration of sand dunes which would increase 
potential flood damage. 

((77))  Allowed Uses 

((aa))  No manufactured homes shall be permitted in the coastal 
high hazard flood zone.  

((bb))  Recreational vehicles are permitted in the coastal high 
hazard flood zone, subject to the standards in Section 
7.4.6.A.7, Recreational Vehicles. 

CC..  Standards for Floodplains without Established Base Flood Elevations 
The following standards shall apply to all development within A Flood 
zones where no base flood elevation data has been provided by FEMA: 

((11))  The standards in Section 7.4.6.A.1, Standards Applied to All 
Development. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 19 of 25 

62



((22))  No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial 
improvements or new development shall be permitted within an 
area located 20 feet from top of a stream bank or five times the 
width of the stream, whichever is greater, unless a professional 
engineer certifies the encroachment shall not increase flood 
levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge. 

((33))  The base flood elevation used in determining the minimum 
regulatory flood protection elevation shall be determined based 
on the following: 

((aa))  When base flood elevation data is available from other 
sources, all new construction and substantial improvements 
within such areas shall also comply with all applicable 
standards of this Ordinance and shall be elevated or 
floodproofed in accordance with standards in Section 
7.4.6.A, General Standards. 

((bb))  When floodway or non-encroachment data is available 
from a Federal, State, or other source, all new construction 
and substantial improvements within floodway and non-
encroachment areas shall also comply with the 
requirements in Sections 7.4.6.A.2-9, and 7.4.6.D, Standards 
for Floodways and Non-encroachment Areas. 

((cc))  All development of more than five acres, 50 lots, or 50 
dwelling units shall provide base flood elevation data that 
will be used in implementing these standards. 

DD..  Standards for Floodways and Non-Encroachment Areas 
Areas designated as floodways or non-encroachment can be extremely 
hazardous areas due to the velocity of floodwaters that have erosion 
potential and carry debris and potential projectiles.  Development within 
these areas shall comply with the following standards: 

((11))  The standards in Section 7.4.6.A, General Standards: Flood 
Damage Prevention, all other applicable standards in this 
ordinance, and the Currituck County Administrative Manual; 

((22))  No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial 
improvements and other developments shall be permitted unless: 

((aa))  It is demonstrated that the proposed encroachment would 
not result in any increase in the flood levels during the 
occurrence of the base flood, based on hydrologic and 
hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with 
standard engineering practice and presented prior to 
issuance of floodplain development permit; or 

((bb))  A Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) has been 
approved by FEMA.  A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) must 
also be obtained upon completion of the proposed 
encroachment. 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 20 of 25 

63



 

EE..  Standards for Riverine Floodplains without Established Floodways or Non-
encroachment Areas 
All development along rivers and streams where base flood elevation 
data is available but floodway and non-encroachment areas are not 
identified on the FIRM or in the FIS report, shall comply with the following 
standards: 

((11))  The standards in Section 7.4.6.A, General Standards; 

((22))  No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial 
improvements, or other development, shall be permitted until: 

((aa))  A regulatory floodway or non-encroachment area is 
designated; or 

((bb))  Certification is provided by a registered professional 
engineer that the proposed development, when 
combined with all other existing and anticipated 
development, will not increase the water surface elevation 
of the base flood more than one foot at any point within 
the community. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Item 38:  That Chapter 9: Enforcement is amended by adding the following underlined language and 
deleting the following strikethrough language: 

9.5.4 Enforcement Procedure  

AA..  Investigation of Complaint 
On receiving a written complaint, the Planning Director shall investigate the 
complaint and determine whether a violation of this Ordinance exists. 

BB..  Notice of Violations  

((11))  On finding that a violation of this Ordinance exists, whether from 
an investigation of a written complaint or otherwise, the Planning 
Director shall provide written notification of the violation, by 
personal service or first class mail, to the owner of the property on 
which the violation exists and the person causing or maintaining 
the violation.  Such notification shall: 

((aa))    Describe the location and nature of the violation; 

((bb))  State the actions necessary to abate the violation; and 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 21 of 25 

64



((cc))  Order that the violation be corrected within a specified 
reasonable time period stated in the notice of violation.  

((dd))  For the purposes of floodplain management, order that the 
violation be corrected within a specified reasonable time 
period stated in the notice of violation but in no case shall 
that exceed 180 days.   

 
 

9.6.1 Remedies 

FF..  Revocation of Permit or Approval 
No person may continue to make use of land or buildings in the manner 
authorized by a zoning permit, special use permit, conditional use 
permit, floodplain development permit, or sign permit approved prior to 
January 1, 2013, after such permit has been revoked in accordance with 
this section, or a use permit, zoning compliance permit, floodplain 
development permit, or sign permit approved after January 1, 2013.  The 
Planning Director may revoke any such permit or approval in 
accordance with the following. 

((44))  Floodplain Development Permit 

((aa))  The Planning Director may revoke a floodplain 
development permit by notifying the permit holder in 
writing  for any of the following reasons: 

((ii))  Substantial departure from the approved 
application, plans, and specifications; 

((iiii))  Refusal or failure to comply with the requirements of 
State or local laws; 

((iiiiii))  False statements or misrepresentations made in 
securing the permit; or 

((iivv))  Floodplain development permit mistakenly issued in 
violation of an applicable State or local law. 

 
 
Item 39: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language and 
deleting the following strikethrough language: 
 

10.5 DEFINITIONS 
AREA OF SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD 

See “special flood hazard area (SFHA)” 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 22 of 25 

65



BASE FLOOD ELEVATION (BFE)  
A determination of the water surface elevations of the base flood as published in the Flood 
Insurance Study. When the base flood elevation  has not been provided in a “special flood 
hazard area”, it may be obtained from engineering studies available from a Federal, State, or 
other source using FEMA approved engineering methodologies.  This elevation, when 
combined with freeboard, establishes the regulatory flood protection elevation. 

CHEMICAL STOREAGE FACILITY 
For the purposes of Flood Damage Prevention, a building, portion of a building, or exterior 
area adjacent to a building used for the storage of any chemical or chemically reactive 
products.   

DESIGN FLOOD ELEVATION 

See regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) 

FLOOD HAZARD BOUNDARY MAP  (FHBM) 
An official map issued by FEMA where the boundaries of the special flood hazard areas have 
been defined as Zone A.  showing the boundaries of the special flood hazard area. 

FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
A type of development permit for development within a special flood hazard area reviewed 
and approved or denied by the Planning Director in accordance with Section 2.4.12, floodplain 
development permit prior to the commencement of development activity. 

FLOOD-RESISTANT MATERIAL 
Any building product (material, component, or system) capable of withstanding direct and 
prolonged contact (minimum 72 hours) with floodwaters without sustaining damage that 
requires more than low-cost cosmetic repair.  Any material that is water-soluble or is not 
resistant to alkali or acid in water, including normal adhesives for above-grade use, is not 
flood-resistant.  Pressure-treated lumber or naturally decay-resistant lumbers are acceptable 
flooring materials.  Sheet-type flooring coverings that restrict evaporation from below and 
materials that are impervious, but dimensionally unstable are not acceptable.  Materials that 
absorb or retain water excessively after submergence are not flood-resistant.  Please refer to 
Technical Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements, dated 8/08, and 
available from the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  Class 4 and 5 materials, 
referenced therein, are acceptable flood-resistant materials. 

FREEBOARD 
The height added to base flood elevation to account for the many unknown factors that could 
contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and 
floodway conditions, such as wave action, blockage of bridge openings, and the hydrological 
effect of urbanization of the watershed.  The base flood elevation plus the freeboard 
establishes the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE).   

 

HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY 
For the purposes of Flood Damage Prevention, a facility for the collection, storage, 
processing, treatment, recycling, recovery, or disposal of hazardous waste, as defined in 
NCGS 130A, Article 9.  

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 23 of 25 

66



LOWEST FLOOR 

The  lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement) of a habitable structure. 
An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of , building access, or 
limited storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s lowest 
floor, provided that such an enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of 
the applicable non-elevation design requirements of this ordinance.   

MANUFACTURED HOME PARK OR SUBDIVISION 
For the purposes of Flood Damage Prevention, means a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land 
divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.   

 

MEAN SEA LEVEL 
The National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) as corrected in 1929, the North American 
Vertical Datum (NAVD) as corrected in 1988, or other vertical control datum used as a 
reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain, to which base flood 
elevations (BFEs) shown on a FIRM are referenced. Refer to each FIRM panel to determine 
datum used.  Refer to each FIRM panel to determine datum used.    

 

PRINCIPALLY ABOVE GROUND 
A portion of a building that a At least 51 percent of the actual cash value of the structure is 
above ground.  

 

REGULATORY FLOOD PROTECTION ELEVATION 
The base flood elevation  plus the freeboard.  In special flood hazard areas where base flood 
elevations have been determined, this elevation shall be the base flood elevation  plus one foot 
of freeboard.  In special flood hazard areas where no base flood elevation  has been 
established, this elevation shall be at least two feet above the highest adjacent grade.     

 

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY 

For the purposes of Flood Damage Prevention, any facility involved in the disposal of solid 
waste, as defined in NCGS 130A-290 (a)(35). 

 

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE 
For the purposes of Flood Damage Prevention, any place at which solid wastes are disposed 
of by incineration, sanitary landfill, or any other method.   

VARIANCE 
A development application reviewed and approved, approved with conditions, or denied by 
the Board of Adjustment in accordance with Section 2.4.14, Variance.   
 
For the purposes of Flood Damage Prevention, a grant of relief from the requirements of this 
ordinance.     

 

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 24 of 25 

67



 
 
 
 
 
 
Item 40: The standards of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its standards or any sentence, 
clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held 
unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining standards which can 
be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
 
 
 
 
Item 41: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 2012. 
 
 
      
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:       
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:        
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:        
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:       
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:       
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:      
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

PB 12-05 Currituck County Text Amendment 
 Page 25 of 25 

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners  
 
From: Ben E. Woody, Planning & Community Development Director 
  
Date: October 1, 2012 
 
Subject:  Planning Board Term Expirations 
 
 
The following Planning Board member term will expire December 31, 2012; however they 
have only served one term and are eligible to be appointed for a second term. 
 
At Large – Paul O’Neal 
  John Wright 
 
 
The following Planning Board member will complete two successive terms on December 31, 
2012 and consideration should be given to replacing them. 
 
District 5 – Marion Gilbert 
  Joe Kovacs 
 
 

 
 
 

 

75



PLANNING BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

2nd Term
James Clark District 1 Vance Aydlett January 2012 12/31/2014

1st Term
Suzanne Everhart District 2 John Rorer January 2012 12/31/2014

Unexpired Term
John Cooper District 3 Butch Petrey January 2012 12/31/2014

1st Term
Daniel Cartwright District 4 Owen Etheridge January 2012 12/31/2014

2nd Term
Joe Kovacs* District 5 Marion Gilbert January 2010 12/31/2012

2nd term
Fannie Newbern At-Large Paul Martin January 2012 12/31/2014

1st Term
John Wright** At-Large Paul O'Neal January 2010 12/31/2012

Outer Banks 2nd term
Lynne Wilson Alternate Vance Aydlett January 2012 12/31/2014

Mainland 2nd term
Bobby Bell Alternate Paul O'Neal January 2012 12/31/2014

* To be Replaced
** May Be Reappointed

76

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

1st Term
Christian Conner* District 1  Vance Aydlett 12/7/2009 12/31/2012

2nd Term
Bryan Bass** District 2 John Rorer 12/7/2009 12/31/2012

1st Term
Theresa Dozier District 3 Butch Petrey 3/7/2011 12/31/2013

1st Term
David Palmer District 4 Owen Etheridge 4/18/2011 12/1/2013

1st Term
Cameron Tabor-Alternate District 5 Marion Gilbert 2/21/2011 12/31/2013

Unexpired Term
Mike Painter-Alternate At Large Paul Martin 8/20/12 1/1/2015

1st Term
Vivian Simpson At-Large Paul O'Neal 1/17/2012 1/1/2015

* May Be Reappointed
** To Be Replaced

77

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


TOURISM ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Petrina Ramey District 1 Vance Aydlett 4/4/2011 November 2013
Unexpired Term

Shearl Bell District 2 John Rorer 5/21/2012 November 2012
Appointed

Ted Jagucki District 3 Butch Petrey 11/21/11 November 2014
Reappointed

Paul Robinson District 4 Owen Etheridge 11/21/11 November 2014
Appointed

Janice Farr District 5 Marion Gilbert 6/18/12 May 2013

Don Cheek* At-Large Mike Martine Paul Martin 11/16/09 November 2012
Appointed

Leslie Daughtry At-Large Paul O'Neal 1/3/2012 January 2015

* To Be Replaced

Commissioner O'Neal

78

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


79



Number 2013040

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50550-592012 COA Apron/Taxiway 23,846$  
50390-495051 T F - School Construction Fund 2,385$  
50330-448000 State Aide to Airports 21,461$  

23,846$  23,846$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

County Governmental Construction - Airport (50550) - Increase appropriations for increase in NC DOA 
grant 36244.10.5.1 for the COA Airport Apron and Taxiway.  This will be funded through 90% grant 
funds and 10% local funds.  The local match was appropriated as part of the COA building 
construction project.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $23,846.

80

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013041

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10531-545000 Contracted Services 4,000$  
10531-514000 Travel 4,000$  
10531-532000 Supplies 12,625$  
10330-445000 Emergency Management 20,625$  

20,625$  20,625$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Emergency Management (10531) - Increase appropriations for 2012 Emergency Management 
Performance Grant (EMPG), which will be utilized for various Emergency Management related projects 
throughout this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $20,625.

81

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013042

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10640-532004 FCS Supplies 4,411$  
10640-514000 Travel 250$
10330-449900 Miscellaneous Grants 4,661$  

4,661$  4,661$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To increase appropriations for the Medicare Counseling (SHIIP) grant 
funding.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $4,661.

82

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013043

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10640-532004 FCS Supplies 284$
10640-516100 Building Supplies 180$
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 180$  
10380-485002 Miscellaneous Supplies 284$  

464$  464$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To increase appropriations for a donation to the Food and Consumer 
Science program and to replace damaged mailbox.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $4,661.

83

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013044

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10531-532000 Supplies 1,992$  
10330-445000 Emergency Management Grant 1,992$  

1,992$  1,992$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Emergency Management (10531) - Increase appropriations to record grant for supplies for the 
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT).

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,992.

84

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013045

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10790-545000 Contract Services 624$
10790-516000 Repairs & Maintenance 624$  

624$  624$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Library (10790) - Transfer funds for a copier lease at the Corolla library.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,992.

85

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013046

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50460-596100 Professional Services 37,185$  
50390-495051 T F - School Construction Fund 37,185$  

51848-587050 T T - County Govt Facilities Fund 37,185$  
51848-597000 Primary School South 37,185$  

74,370$  74,370$  

Explanation:

School Facilities Fund (51) - No change.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

County Governmental Facilities - Bus Garage (50460); School Facilities - Jarvisburg Elementary 
School (51848) - Transfer residual funds from Jarvisburg Elementary School Construction for design, 
permitting and bidding to relocate the school bus garage to the Maple Commerce Park property.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $37,185.

86

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013047

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50460-596100 Professional Services 37,185$  
50390-495051 T F - School Construction Fund 37,185$  

51848-587050 T T - County Govt Facilities Fund 37,185$  
51848-597000 Primary School South 37,185$  

74,370$  74,370$  

Explanation:

School Facilities Fund (51) - No change.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

County Governmental Facilities - Bus Garage (50460); School Facilities - Jarvisburg Elementary 
School (51848) - Transfer residual funds from Jarvisburg Elementary School Construction for design, 
permitting and bidding to relocate the school bus garage to the Maple Commerce Park property.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $37,185.

87

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013048

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

51848-598001 Central Elem Parking 76,755$  
51848-597000 Primary School South 76,755$  

76,755$  76,755$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

School Facilities - Central Elementary Parking (51848) -Transfer residual funds from the Jarvisburg 
Elementary School construction for design, administration, permitting and bidding to rework the 
parking, driveway and bus loop at Central Elementary school.

Net Budget Effect: School Facilities Fund (51) - No change.

88

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013049

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

60808-545001 Contract Services 13,000$  
60808-590001 Capital Outlay 13,000$  

13,000$  13,000$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Ocean Sands Water and Sewer (60808) - Transfer funds for material and installation of a fence for the 
Ocean Sands sewer facilities.

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer Fund (60) - No change.

89

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013050

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10550-503500 Temporary Services 3,006$  
10550-502000 Salaries - Regular 3,006$  

3,006$  3,006$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Airport (10550) - Transfer residual funds from salaries, due to unpaid leave, to temporary services and 
authorize hiring temporary employees to supplement the part-time staff due to employees on FMLA 
and other vacancies.  This will authorize up to 220 hours of temporary services for the remainder of 
this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

90

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013051

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10420-589000 Board OSD Projects 3,000$  
10350-468000 Sale of Fixed Assets 3,000$  

3,000$  3,000$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Governing Body (10420) - Increase appropriations to provide funding for the County Christmas 
luncheon.  Funding will be from revenues received from selling capital assets on Gov Deals.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $3,000.

91

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013052

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10796-503000 Salaries - Part-time 1,085$  
10796-502000 Salaries - Regular 933$  
10796-507000 Retirement 152$  

1,085$  1,085$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Rural Center (10796) - Transfer funds for position reclassification from part-time to full-time budgeted 
for an effective date of 9/1/2012.  Transfer did not actually become effective until 10/1/2012.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

92

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013053

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10480-590000 Capital Outlay 22,500$  
10480-532000 Supplies 1,969$  
10480-502000 Salary 14,000$  
10480-505000 FICA 1,071$  
10480-507000 Retirement 1,648$  
10480-557303 Archives & Records Management Fee 7,750$  

24,469$  24,469$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Register of Deeds (10480) - Transfer funds to Capital Outlay to replace the Register of Deeds server 
and workstations and to supplies for items needed for new Register of Deeds.  This will be funded 
through the salary difference of the Register of Deeds and the Archives & Records Management Fee 
that was budgeted but has been suspended for this fiscal year by the State.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

93

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013054

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

56868-590001 RO & Conventional WTP Expansion 1,848,932$  
56868-587066 T T - Southern Outer Banks Operating 584,689$  
56868-590002 .25 MGD Conventional Treatment 500,000$  
56868-590003 1.5 MG Water Storage 117,674$  
56868-590006 Carolina Water Purchase 155,157$  
56868-590007 Pine Island Water Purchase 31,377$  
56868-590008 Paint Existing Tank 860$  
56868-596100 Professional Services 360,000$  
56868-588000 Contingency 99,175$  

1,848,932$  1,848,932$               

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Southern Outer Banks Water Construction Fund (56868) - Transfer residual funds from completed 
projects and contingency to award contract to George Raper & Son Inc of Elizabeth City in the amount 
of $3,648,932 for the expansion of the Reverse Osmosis and Conventional Water Treatment Plants at 
the Southern Outher Banks Water System.

Net Budget Effect: Southern Outher Banks Water Construction Fund (56) - No change.

94

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013055

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-539000 Unemployment Compensation 13,156$  
10511-539000 Unemployment Compensation 13,583$  
10530-539000 Unemployment Compensation 7,408$  
10640-539000 Unemployment Compensation 1,101$  
10960-539000 Unemployment Compensation 30,000$  
10380-482000 Miscellaneous Revenue 5,248$  

35,248$  35,248$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Sheriff (10510); Jail (10511); EMS (10530); Cooperative Extension (10640); Central Services (10960)- 
Transfer and increase appropriations for unemployment charges for the year ending July 31, 2012.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $5,248.

95

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013056

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10430-514801 Fees Paid to Precint Officials 7,000$  
10430-521000 Rent 640$
10390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 7,640$  

7,640$  7,640$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Elections (10430) - Increased appropriations for costs associated with the November 2012 election.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $7,640.

96

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on December 3, 2012, authorized the following, pursuant to 
GS 160A and 270(b), that the computers listed below be given 
to outgoing commissioners Rorer and Etheridge.   

Asset Tag Description Serial Number

6965 Laptop computer issued to Etheridge CL88QH1
6968 Laptop computer issued to Rorer DL88QH1

ADOPTED, this 3rd day of December 2012. 

____________________________________ 

Currituck County Board of  
Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 

97



Clerk to the Board 

98



 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 

NORTH CAROLINA 

November 19, 2012   

 

The Board met prior to the regular meeting at 6:00 p.m. to review the 

Moyock Small Area Plan. 

 

The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly scheduled 

meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the Commissioners Meeting Room 

with the following members present: Chairman John Rorer, Vice-Chair 

Marion Gilbert, Commissioners O’Neal, Etheridge, Martin, Aydlett and 

Petrey.  

 

A) Invocation 

B) Pledge of Allegiance 

Reverend Paul Bopp, Truth Alive Church, was present for the 

invocation. 

 

C) Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the agenda to include the 

deletion of Outgoing Comments.  Commissioner O’Neal seconded the 

motion.  Motion carried. 

 

D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 

agenda; please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 

 

Chairman Rorer opened the public comment period. 

 

Mary Etheridge, Elections Director, thanked the precinct workers 

during the last election.  There were 11,350 voters which is 64%. 

 

Tommy Hardison, Shingle Landing, stated that the work promised has 

not been done and the approval for Phase II should not be allowed. 

 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, stated that the condition for Phase 

II was that drainage and shoulders be completed. 

 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated that the permit can be revoked 

and begin the citation for violation of permit. 

 

99



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

2 
 

Commissioner Gilbert requested that the Board revoke permit and 

begin citation request. 

 

Commissioner O’Neal questioned who will complete the work on 

shoulder, drainage and the railroad issues. 

 

Commissioner Martin stated that the HOA should not be responsible 

for the railroad problem.  We have a nursing home and a boat ramp.  

The developer should move forward with completion. 

 

Terry Wadleigh, stated that if the railroad fee has not been paid 

by December 1
st
, we cannot use the road. 

 

Commissioner Aydlett stated that this is a public safety issue and 

we need to insure the road is not blocked. 

 

Mary Waller, requested if there could be another road constructed 

out of the subdivision. 

 

Donna and Adam Benson, Tulls Bay, stated that this is the 3
rd
 time 

they have appeared to request that an abandoned boat be removed by 

the county. 

 

Commissioner O’Neal questioned why this boat cannot be removed. 

 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated he will get with zoning to move 

forward with removing the boat. 

 

Denise Hall, thanked the citizens for voting her in as the new 

Register of Deeds and also thanked Charlene Dowdy for her many 

years of service. 

 

Susan Davis, Shingle Landing, questioned the option of another 

road out of subdivision. 

 

John Snowden, Maple, questioned the resolution in the consent 

agenda supporting Virginia opposing uranium mining.  He stated 

that Virginia Beach has not supported Currituck County with water 

quality in the Sound. 

 

Commissioner Etheridge, stated that the County has gone to 

congress and the Corps of Engineer and have worked on these issues 

100



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

3 
 

for many years.  We need to open up a line of communication with 

Virginia. 

 

Commissioner Etheridge also expressed concerns on the paving 

project by DOT on US 158. 

 

Commissioner Aydlett, thanked the citizens and friends for their 

support during his illness. 

 

There being no further comments, Chairman Rorer closed the public 

comment period.  

 

Public Hearings 

 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-05 Currituck County: Request 
to amend the new Unified Development Ordinance to correct and 
clarify language in the following chapters: Chapter 1: 

General Provisions, Chapter 2: Administration, Chapter 3: 
Zoning Districts, Chapter 5: Development Standards, and 

Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement. 

 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 

The enclosed text amendment submitted by the Currituck County Planning and Community 
Development Department is intended to amend miscellaneous sections of the new Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO).   The proposed amendments have been identified by staff as we 
continue to use and test the new UDO, which is effective January 1, 2013.  The proposed 
amendments include: 
 
23. Clarifying setback encroachments.  
24. Deleting the provision of requiring lots bordering the farmland compatibility vegetated buffer 

to be twice the minimum lot size. 
25. Clarifying minimum lot/unit size for multifamily developments in the MXR district. 
26. Clarifying planned development dimensional standards. 
27. Clarifying PUD transitional standards.  
28. Exempting development adjacent to property zoned LB, GB, LI, of HI from the community 

compatibility standards.  
29. Not requiring a conceptual plan to submitted for zoning map amendments for pre-application 

conferences.  
30. Clarifying commercial design standards. 
31. Correcting expiration of development approvals.  
32. Deleting redundancy among the variance findings. 
 
The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-05 as presented on October 9, 2012.  
  

101



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

4 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (October 9, 2012) 
Mr. Cooper asked if the letters sent out to Adjoining Property Owners for a zoning map amendment 
required a conceptual drawing.  
 
Mr. Schuler stated it did not. 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Ms. Wilson moved to approve PB 12-05 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and 
that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and 
development. Ms. Everhart seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Currituck County 
PB 12-05 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 2: Administration, Chapter 3: Zoning 
Districts, Chapter 5: Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that the 
Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 23:  That Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language:  
 

Section 10.3.4.B General Setback RequirementsSection 10.3.4.B General Setback RequirementsSection 10.3.4.B General Setback RequirementsSection 10.3.4.B General Setback Requirements    

(1) Setback ExemptionsSetback ExemptionsSetback ExemptionsSetback Exemptions     

(c)  Handicap ramps may encroach into a required setback.  

 

Section 10.3.4.C Allowable Setback EncroachmentsSection 10.3.4.C Allowable Setback EncroachmentsSection 10.3.4.C Allowable Setback EncroachmentsSection 10.3.4.C Allowable Setback Encroachments    

(1) Building FeaturesBuilding FeaturesBuilding FeaturesBuilding Features     

(a)  Flagpoles, birdhouses, fences, walls, well houses, pump covers, arbors, 

residential mechanical equipment, water-dependent features, and other 

nonhabitable structures of 25 square feet in size or less may be located 

within a required setback, but may not be located within a required sight 

triangle. 

(b) Building eaves, gutters, canopies, chimneys, bay windows; and steps, 

uncovered porches, decks, patios, handicap ramps, or sidewalks 

extending more than 12 inches above the ground that prevent infiltration 

of rainwater may encroach into a required setback up to three feet. 

102



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

5 
 

(c) Uncovered porches, decks, patios, steps, handicap ramps, or sidewalks 

extending 12 inches above ground or less that allow infiltration of 

rainwater may encroach into a required setback by up to five feet.  

(d)  Arbors may be located within 20 feet of a major arterial street.   

 

 
Item 24:  That Chapter 5: Development Standards is amended by deleting the strikethrough 
language and renumbering accordingly:  

5.11.55.11.55.11.55.11.5    Farmland Compatibility StandardsFarmland Compatibility StandardsFarmland Compatibility StandardsFarmland Compatibility Standards    

C.  Lot Size Configuration Lot Size Configuration Lot Size Configuration Lot Size Configuration     

Except for lots in a conservation subdivision, lots bordering the vegetated 

buffer shall maintain a minimum lot area twice the minimum lot area 

required by the base zoning district where the subdivision is located. 

 

 
Item 25:  That Chapter 3: Zoning Districts is amended by adding the underlined language and 
deleting the strikethrough language:  

3.4.63.4.63.4.63.4.6    Mixed Residential (MXR) DistrictMixed Residential (MXR) DistrictMixed Residential (MXR) DistrictMixed Residential (MXR) District    

D.D.D.D.    DDDDIMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL SSSSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDS    

Single-Family Detached 
Other 

Residential 
Nonresidential 

 

Min. Lot Area/Dwelling Unit (sq ft) [1] 20,000 10,000  N/A 20,000 
1 

 
 
Item 26:  That Chapter 3: Zoning Districts is amended by adding the underlined language and 
deleting the strikethrough language:  

3.7.33.7.33.7.33.7.3    Planned Development Planned Development Planned Development Planned Development ––––    Residential (PDResidential (PDResidential (PDResidential (PD----R) DistrictR) DistrictR) DistrictR) District    

 

B.B.B.B.    DDDDIMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL SSSSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDS    

Nonresidential square footage, land area maximum (% 

of district total) 
40 

Land area occupied  by a s Single housing type,  (% of 

district total) maximum (% of units) 
60 85 

 

C.C.C.C.    DDDDEVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT SSSSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDS    

103



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

6 
 

Open space set-aside [3] Modifications prohibited 30% 

 

NOTES: 

 [3] Where a PD-R district includes nonresidential or mixed-use development, t The  

required percentage of open space set-aside shall be calculated based on the total amount  

of land used for residential, nonresidential, or mixed-use purposes, respectively district area 

 

3.7.43.7.43.7.43.7.4    Planned Development Planned Development Planned Development Planned Development ––––    Mixed (PDMixed (PDMixed (PDMixed (PD----M) DistrictM) DistrictM) DistrictM) District    

 

B.B.B.B.    DDDDIMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL SSSSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDS    

Residential square footage, land area maximum (% of 

district total) 
35 

 

C.C.C.C.    DDDDEVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT SSSSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDS    

Open space set-aside [3] Modifications prohibited 20% 

 

NOTES: 

 [3] Where a PD-R district includes nonresidential or mixed-use development, t The  

required percentage of open space set-aside shall be calculated based on the total amount  

of land used for residential, nonresidential, or mixed-use purposes, respectively district area 

 
 
 
 

3.7.53.7.53.7.53.7.5    Planned Development Planned Development Planned Development Planned Development ––––    Outer Banks (PDOuter Banks (PDOuter Banks (PDOuter Banks (PD----O) DistrictO) DistrictO) DistrictO) District    

 

B.B.B.B.    DDDDIMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL IMENSIONAL SSSSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDS    

Nonresidential square footage, land area maximum (% 

of district total) 
10 

Land area occupied  by a s Single housing type,  (% of 

district total) maximum (% of units) 
75 [2] 

 

C.C.C.C.    DDDDEVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT EVELOPMENT SSSSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDSTANDARDS    

Open space set-aside [3] Modifications prohibited 30% 

 

NOTES: 

 [4] Where a PD-R district includes nonresidential or mixed-use development, t The  

required percentage of open space set-aside shall be calculated based on the total amount  

of land used for residential, nonresidential, or mixed-use purposes, respectively district area 

 

104



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

7 
 

 
Item 27:  That Chapter 1: General Provisions is amended by adding the underlined language and 
deleting the strikethrough language.  

1.8.61.8.61.8.61.8.6    Approved Planned Unit Development District Overlays and Sketch PlansApproved Planned Unit Development District Overlays and Sketch PlansApproved Planned Unit Development District Overlays and Sketch PlansApproved Planned Unit Development District Overlays and Sketch Plans 

B.  An owner of a parcel proposed for redevelopment, vacant parcel, or 

phase of a planned unit development subject to an approved sketch 

plan may submit a development application or application to amend 

the approved sketch plan or special use permit consistent with the 

applicable conditions of approval and compliance with the following: 

((11))  Bulk and Dimensional RequirementsBulk and Dimensional RequirementsBulk and Dimensional RequirementsBulk and Dimensional Requirements    

Development applications or modifications to an approved 

sketch plan shall comply with the standards in Table 1.8.6.A, 

Bulk and Dimensional Standards. 

TTAABBLLEE  11..88..66..AA::  BBUULLKK  AANNDD  DDIIMMEENNSSIIOONNAALL  SSTTAANNDDAARRDDSS  

SSSSITE ITE ITE ITE CCCCHARACTERISTICHARACTERISTICHARACTERISTICHARACTERISTIC    SSSSTANDARDTANDARDTANDARDTANDARD    

Minimum Lot Area (square feet) 
10,000 with central sewer [1]; 

20,000 without central sewer 

Minimum Open Space Set-

Aside (%) 
35 [12] 

Maximum Building Square 

Footage Land Area Occupied by 

Commercial development Uses 

(%) 

10 

NOTES: 

[1] May be reduced in accordance with Section 3.2.2, Zero Lot Line 

Development or if lot size reduction is added to the minimum 

open space set-aside. 

[12] No modification to an approved sketch plan shall result in a 

planned development with less than 35 percent of its land area 

occupied by open space. 
 
 

((22))  Allowable UsesAllowable UsesAllowable UsesAllowable Uses    

The range of principal uses allowed on a site subject to a 

modified sketch plan shall be limited to the following: 

105



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

8 
 

allowable uses for the PD-O district listed in Table 4.1.1, 

Summary Use Table. 

((aa))  Land designated for residential development shall be 

limited to the allowable uses for the SFO district listed 

in Table 4.1.1, Summary Use Table. 

((bb))  Land designated for commercial or multi-family 

development shall be limited to the allowable uses for 

the PD-O district listed in Table 4.1.1, Summary Use 

Table. 

((cc))  Airports, major utilities, wind energy facilities, outdoor 

recreation/ entertainment uses, and vehicle sales and 

services require approval of a use permit. 

((33))  Development StandardsDevelopment StandardsDevelopment StandardsDevelopment Standards    

Development associated with a development application or 

modified sketch plan shall comply with the following 

development standards in this Ordinance Chapter 5: 

Development Standards, Chapter 6: Subdivision and 

Infrastructure, and Chapter 7: Environmental Protection 

provided compliance with the standards does not have the 

effect of decreasing the type, density, or intensity of land 

designations contained in the approved master plan 

establishing the planned unit development.: 

((aa))  Off-street parking and loading standards in Section 

5.1; 

((bb))  Landscaping standards in Section 5.2; 

((cc))  Exterior lighting standards in Section 5.4; 

((dd))  Community form standards in Section 5.6; 

((ee))  Multi-family design standards in Section 5.7; 

((ff))  Nonresidential design standards in Section 5.8; 

((gg))  Shopping center design standards in Section 5.9; 

((hh))  Community compatibility standards in Section 5.10; 

((ii))  Signage in Section 5.12;  

106



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

9 
 

((jj))  Tree protection standards in Section 7.2; 

((kk))  Stormwater management standards in Section 7.3, 

(unless the planned unit development is already 

subject to a stormwater management plan); 

((ll))  Flood damage prevention standards in Section 7.4; and 

((mm))  Sedimentation and erosion control in Section 7.5. 

C.  Sketch plan amendment applications that comply with the land 

designations contained in the approved master plan establishing the 

planned unit development and development applications that comply 

with Subsection (B) above may be approved by the Planning Director 

shall not be required to obtain special use permit approval. 

D. To    the extent a landowner proposes development that is different 

than that allowed in the sketch plan or Subsection (B) above, the land 

requires approval of an amended sketch plan and use permit (see 

Section 2.4.6, Use Permit) zoning map amendment (see Section 2.4.3, 

Zoning Map Amendment), or planned development (see Section 2.4.5, 

Planned Development). 

 
Item 28:  That Chapter 5: Development Standards is amended by adding the underlined language.  
 

5.10.25.10.25.10.25.10.2    ApplicabilityApplicabilityApplicabilityApplicability    

E.  ExemptionsExemptionsExemptionsExemptions    

Commercial, industrial, mixed-use, and multi-family development 

located on land adjacent to or across a local street from a single-family 

detached dwelling on property zoned LB, GB, LI, or HI, or on a ten acre lot 

or larger is exempt from these standards. 

 

Item 29:  That Chapter 2: Administration is amended by adding the underlined language. 
 

2.3.32.3.32.3.32.3.3    PrePrePrePre----Application ConferenceApplication ConferenceApplication ConferenceApplication Conference    

C.  Required Information Submitted Prior to ConferenceRequired Information Submitted Prior to ConferenceRequired Information Submitted Prior to ConferenceRequired Information Submitted Prior to Conference    

(1)  Except for a pre-application conference associated with a text 

amendment and zoning map amendment, the applicant shall submit 

107



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

10 
 

conceptual drawings that show the location, general layout, and 

main elements of the development to be proposed as part of the 

application. 

 
 
Item 30:  That Chapter 5: Development Standards and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement 
are amended by adding the underlined language, deleting the strikethrough language, and 
renumbering accordingly. 
 

Section 5.7.3.C Building DesignSection 5.7.3.C Building DesignSection 5.7.3.C Building DesignSection 5.7.3.C Building Design    

  Roof FormRoof FormRoof FormRoof Form    (3)

(a) Development shall incorporate sloped roofs greater than or equal to one  

foot of vertical rise for every four feet of horizontal run (3:12), and less 

than or equal to one foot of vertical rise for every one feet of horizontal 

run (12:12), roof pitches between 3:12 and 12:12, or shall incorporate a 

three-foot parapet with a dimensional cornice around a flat roof.  

Alternative roof forms or pitches may be allowed for small roof sections 

over porches, entryways, or similar features.   

 

Section 5.8.3.B Building PlacementSection 5.8.3.B Building PlacementSection 5.8.3.B Building PlacementSection 5.8.3.B Building Placement    

((44))  Fronting StreetsFronting StreetsFronting StreetsFronting Streets    

((aa))  The façade of all buildings in view from a public right-of-way, shall 

contain substantially the same building articulation, features and 

elements that are used on the façade which comprises the primary 

entrance to the building (see Figure 5.8.3.B.1, Comparable Façade 

Design). 

 

 

Section 5.8.3.C Design FeaturesSection 5.8.3.C Design FeaturesSection 5.8.3.C Design FeaturesSection 5.8.3.C Design Features    

  Design FeaturesDesign FeaturesDesign FeaturesDesign Features    (1)

Front building facades and facades facing streets shall provide a minimum of 

three of the following six design features (see Figure 5.8.3.C.1, Required 

Building Design Features): 

 

  Prohibited MaterialsProhibited MaterialsProhibited MaterialsProhibited Materials    (4)

108



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

11 
 

Metal siding shall not be used on front building facades and facades facing 

streets.  
 

10.5    DEFINITIONS    
 

FRONT (OR PRIMARY) FAÇADE 

The side or elevation of a structure that contains the structure's architectural 

front including the primary customer entrance. , or the portion of the structure 

facing the street from which the structure derives its street address. 

 

ROOF, FLAT 

A roof with a slope of less than one foot of vertical rise for every four feet of 

horizontal run (3:12). 
 
Item 31:  That Chapter 2: Administration is amended by adding the underlined language, deleting 
the strikethrough language. 

2.4.62.4.62.4.62.4.6    Use PermitUse PermitUse PermitUse Permit    

G.  Expiration of Development Approval Expiration of Development Approval Expiration of Development Approval Expiration of Development Approval     

A use permit shall automatically expire if any of the following is not 

obtained within two years of the date of use permit approval: 

(3)  Approval of construction drawings Submittal of a complete 

application for approval of a final plat, if the use requires approval 

of a preliminary plat. 

 

Section 2.4.8.E.4.D Expiration of Development ApprovalSection 2.4.8.E.4.D Expiration of Development ApprovalSection 2.4.8.E.4.D Expiration of Development ApprovalSection 2.4.8.E.4.D Expiration of Development Approval    
 

(i)  Approval of a type I or type II preliminary plat shall automatically 

expire if a complete application for approval of a final plat is not 

submitted within two years after the date of approval of the type I or 

type II preliminary plat. 
 

Item 32:  That Chapter 2: Administration is amended by deleting the strikethrough language. 

109



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

12 
 

2.4.62.4.62.4.62.4.6    VarianceVarianceVarianceVariance    

D.  Variance Review StandardsVariance Review StandardsVariance Review StandardsVariance Review Standards    

A variance shall be approved on a finding the applicant demonstrates all 

of the following standards are met: 

 (2)  The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the 

application of this Ordinance, and the same hardship is not shared 

by neighbors or the general public; 
 
 
Item 33: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any sentence, 
clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held 
unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which 
can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

 

 

Chairman Rorer opened the public hearing.  There were no 

comments so he closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve due to its consistency 

with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is 

reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly 

growth and development.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the 

motion.  Motion carried. 

 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-18 Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance Administrative Manual:  Request to 
approve the Administrative Manual for the new Unified 

Development Ordinance. 

 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 

The purpose of the administrative manual is to assist in the 

administration of the new Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  It 

is similar to the development review process manual of the current 

UDO. The administrative manual’s primary goal is to explain the 

review procedures of development applications established in the 

UDO.  The manual contains, among other things: application forms, 

staff review checklist, planting details, and submittal and fee 

schedules.  The manual consolidates information in the development 

review process, and helps applicants understand the procedures and 

requirements.  The intent of the manual is more specifically to: 

110



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

13 
 

 

A. Establish a process that is clear and understandable to all 
interested parties, applicants and staff; 

B. Clarify the standards and procedures for submitting complete 
and relevant information for development applications; 

C. Provide information and tools to assist applicants during the 
review process; 

D. Provide official interpretations of the UDO; and 
E. Establish planting standards that promote health and survival 

of landscaping installed in the county.  

 

The administrative manual is divided into three parts: 

 

1. Introduction 
 The introduction provides background on the manual and its 

purpose, and recognizes it as part of the UDO.  

 

2. Procedures and Applications 
Contains detailed review processes, applications, and design 

and submittal checklists for all development applications 

established in the UDO.   

 

3. Appendices 
Contain standards that are applicable to all development 

applications, specifically, flood damage prevention, planting 

standards, and official interpretations.  Also included are 

items that may assist applicants in the development review 

process including links to useful tools (UDO, Land Use Plan, 

online mapping) and staff review checklist.  Finally, the 

appendices establish submittal and fee schedules for 

development applications.  

 

The administrative manual will be available on the county’s 

website for review.  The direct link will be emailed to you once 

it is posted.  Should you have any questions on the manual, please 

contact Brad Schuler, Planner I, at 232-6033 or 

Brad.Schuler@CurrituckCountyNC.gov. 

 

The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-18 as presented 

due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the 

request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes 

orderly growth and development. 

 

The Board of Commissioners continued PB 12-18 at their October 15, 

2012 meeting in order to give them ample time to review the 

document. 

 

111



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

14 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (September 11, 2012) 

No discussion. 

 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 

Ms. Newbern moved to approve PB 12-18 as presented due to its 

consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is 

reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth 

and development. Ms. Everhart seconded the motion. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

  

 

Chairman Rorer opened the public hearing.  There being no 

comments, he closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Martin moved to approve due to its consistency with 

the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in 

the public interest and promotes orderly growth and development.  

Commissioner Petrey seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 

 

C) Public Hearing and Action on Resolution to approve an 
application with NC Local Government Commission for financing 

Phase III of the Whalehead Storm Water Drainage Project  

 

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, reviewed the resolution. 

 

Chairman Rorer opened the public hearing.  There being no 

comments, he closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to adopt the resolution.  Commissioner 

Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 

RESOLUTION 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR 
APPROVAL OF A FINANCING AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY 
NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 160A-20 

 
WHEREAS,  the  County of Currituck,  North  Carolina  desires  to construct the 

Whalehead Subdivision Drainage and Watershed Improvements - Phase III (the “Project”), the 
final phase of a project to better serve the citizens of the Whalehead Watershed Service 
District, Corolla, NC ; and 

 

112



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

15 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Currituck desires to finance the Project by the use of an 
installment contract authorized under North Carolina General Statute 160A, Article 3, Section 
20; and 

 
WHEREAS, findings of fact by this governing body must be presented to enable the 

North Carolina Local Government Commission to make its findings of fact set forth in 
North Carolina General Statute 159, Article 8, Section 151 prior to approval of the proposed 
contract; 

 
NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED  that  the  Board  of  Commissioners of 

Currituck, North Carolina, meeting in regular session on the 19th day of November, 2012, make 
the following findings of fact: 

 
1. The  proposed  contract  is  necessary  or  expedient  to correct drainage 

deficiencies within the Whalehead Service District, which comprises an area of 
land subdivided in 1972 and constructed without stormwater management 
facilities. 

 
2. The proposed contract is preferable to a bond issue for the Project because the 

County desires to borrow an amount not to exceed $3,800,000, which would be 
bank qualified debt, for seven (7) to fifteen (15) years, depending on rates 
received, and it is more economical for the County to do an installment purchase 
contract for this amount rather than increase the borrowing costs with the costs 
associated with a 
referendum and issuance of bonds. 

 
3. The cost of financing under the proposed contract is less than to the cost of 

holding a referendum and issuing general obligation bonds.  Further, the process 
of holding a 
bond referendum and the approval process would delay the Project by six to eight 
months and therefore the County desires to move forward with the installment 
purchase contract. 

 
4. The sums to fall due under the contract are adequate and not excessive for the 

proposed purpose because the County has established a service district with a tax rate 
of nine cents per One Hundred Dollars of property valuation, which will meet the debt 
obligations for this installment purchase agreement. 

 
5. The County of Currituck’s debt management procedures and policies are good because 

the County has identified revenue sources to make debt payments and invests and 
monitors all funds to assure that debt payments are made when due. 

 
6. The County does not anticipate increasing taxes for this new debt. 

 
7.    The County of Currituck is not in default in any of its debt service obligations. 

 

8. The attorney for the County of Currituck has rendered an opinion that the proposed 
Project is authorized by law and is a purpose for which public funds may be expended 
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of North Carolina. 

 

113



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

16 
 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is hereby 
authorized to act on behalf of the County of Currituck in filing an application with the North 
Carolina Local Government Commission for approval of the Project and the proposed financing 
contract and other actions not inconsistent with this resolution. 

 

D) Consideration and Action: PB 07-09 Currituck Reserve, Planned 
Unit Development: Request for a sketch plan/special use 

permit extension of a planned unit development consisting of 
688 units located between Caratoke Highway and Tulls Creek 

Road, North of Guinea Road, Moyock Township. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 

On January 8, 2008, the Board of Commissioners voted to approve the sketch plan/special use 
permit for Currituck Reserve, PUD.  This is a planned unit development consisting of 688 units 
located between Caratoke Highway and Tulls Creek Road, north of Guinea Road.  The sketch 
plan/special use permit approval was due to expire on January 8, 2010.  The North Carolina 
General Assembly passed a law that suspended the vesting period for development approvals that 
were valid at any time during January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2010.  With the law in 
effect the preliminary plat expiration date is January 1, 2013.   
 
On October 17, 2012 Eric L. Smith, AH Currituck Reserve, LLC submitted a request for a two year 
preliminary plat extension of the subdivision citing economic reasons (see attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the Board of Commissioners may grant an 
extension of the special use permit one time for a period of two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The special use permit has not yet expired and will expire January 1, 2013. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence, however, due to the economy 

have not been able to proceed as desired.   
 

3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  
Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted without 
resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   

Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve.  Commissioner Martin 

seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

New Business 

 

114



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

17 
 

A) Board Appointments: 

1. Appointments to Nursing Home Advisory Board 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to reappoint the following:  

Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Diane Bray 

Barbara Courtney 

Florence Scaff 

Rosalie Rose 

Bobbie O’Hara 

 

B) Consent Agenda: 

1. Approval of ECBH September 30 Fiscal Monitoring report 

2. Resolution Recognition of John Barnes, School Board 
Member 

3. Resolution Opposing the Mining of Uranium in Virginia 

4. Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Additional 800 
MHz Radio Communications System Equipment from Gately 

Communications and Motorola Through Sole Source Purchase 

5. Approval of November 5, 2012 Minutes 

 

Commissioner Petrey moved to approve.  Commissioner Martin 

seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 

RESOLUTION OF RECOGNITION 

JOHN E. BARNES 

 
WHEREAS, the citizens of Currituck County have long recognized the 

historic link between education and a strong, free nation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Currituck School System has enabled generations of 

Currituck families to build upon the lessons of the past to 

achieve the dreams of tomorrow; and 

 

WHEREAS, John E. Barnes has been a member of the Currituck County 

Board of Education since 1976; and 

 

WHEREAS, with 36 years of service, John E. Barnes is currently the 

longest serving school board member in the state of North 

Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Barnes has earned the respect and confidence of his 

fellow board members as evidenced by his serving as Chairman from 

January 1981 until January 1994 and alternating between Chairman 

and Vice-Chairman in the following years; and 

115



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

18 
 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Barnes has always made decisions which were in the 

best interest of the students; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Barnes has devoted countless hours of his time, his 

energy and his talents to this county and its children and has 

provided experience and sound judgment on its behalf with 

integrity, dignity and thoughtful reflection; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Barnes is retiring from the Board of Education, with 

his last official meeting being November 20, 2012; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners and County Staff do hereby express our deep 

gratitude and sincere appreciation to John E. Barnes for his 

leadership and dedicated, distinguished service to the citizens of 

Currituck County and extend to him our best wishes for a long and 

well-deserved retirement. 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK COUNTY, 

NORTH CAROLINA, OPPOSING THE MINING OF URANIUM IN THE 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 

 
 WHEREAS, as the “Land of the Wild Goose,” Currituck County has traditionally 
recognized the critical importance of a healthy environment and water supply to the safety, health 
and economic well-being of its citizens; and   
 

WHEREAS, Currituck County maintains continuing opposition to any proposed efforts 
which would jeopardize the quality of life of its citizens, visitors, and neighbors, as evidenced by 
its years of opposition  to the United States Navy’s proposal to locate an Outlying Landing Field in 
the Hales Lake area of Camden County, North Carolina; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Currituck County has learned that there is proposed a uranium mining and 
milling operation at Coles Hill in Pittsylvania County, Virginia,  requiring the lifting of a 30 year 
ban on such operations in Virginia; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 1, 2011, the City of Virginia Beach released the findings of its 
study of impacts of proposed uranium mining and milling on its Lake Gaston water supply 
concluding that in the event of a mill tailing confinement area failure, the radioactive tailings will 
be washed downstream and significantly impact water quality in Kerr Reservoir and Lake Gaston, 
resulting in radiation levels in the water 10 to 20 times above Safe Drinking Water Act levels; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the proposed uranium milling and mining operation will be located within the 
Roanoke River Basin, which serves as a drinking water source for over one million people and is 

116



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting   

 

 

19 
 

the source of at least one-half of the Albemarle Sound water supply critical to fishing, hunting, 
tourism and the economic well-being of Northeastern North Carolina; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the risk, no matter how slight, to waters of the Roanoke River Basin and 
Albemarle Sound brought on by a uranium mine and mill at Coles Hill outweighs any benefit that 
may be derived from uranium mining and milling. 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for Currituck 
County, North Carolina, that Currituck County opposes lifting the ban on uranium mining in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia and supports the effort of organizations and localities to protect the 
people of North Carolina and Virginia from the environmental, quality of life and health impacts 
that could result from lifting the ban on uranium mining. 
 
 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL 800 MHz RADIO 

COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM EQUIPMENT FROM GATELY COMMUNICATIONS 

AND MOTOROLA THROUGH SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE 

 

 WHEREAS, by resolution adopted on June 18, 2012 the Board of Commissioners for the 
Count of Currituck authorized the county to enter into a contract in the amount of $963,150.00 
with Gately Communications for the sole source purchase of material, equipment, supplies and 
services necessary to establish a 800 MHz radio communication system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is now identified additional material, equipment, supplies and services 
necessary for the construction and establishment of the 800 MHz communication system set forth 
in a proposal spread sheet from Motorola dated October 11, 2012 which spread sheet is 
incorporated herein by reference; and  
 
 WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-129(e)(6) authorizes a unit of local government to 
purchase from a sole source “when a needed product is available from only one source of supply”, 
and 
 WHEREAS, in order that the county’s 800 MHz radio system is compatible with the State 
of North Carolina’s VIPER radio system it is necessary to obtain the additional P-25 radio 
compliant equipment which is currently only manufactured by Motorola; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Gately Communications is the only Motorola representative capable of 
providing the county with material, equipment and supplies to establish an 800 MHz radio 
communications system that is P-25 radio compliant and compatible with the state’s VIPER 
system. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for Currituck 
County, North Carolina as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The County of Currituck is authorized to enter into a contract in the amount of 
$543,267.34 with Gately Communications and/or Motorola for the sole source purchase of 

117



November 19, 2012 BOC Meeting  

20 

additional material, equipment, supplies and services necessary to establish a 800 MHz radio 
communications system and in accordance with the sole source provision requirements set forth by 
N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-129(e)(6).  Further, the county manager is authorized to execute the 
agreement with Gately Communications and/or Motorola for acquisition and installation of the 
material, equipment or supplies and services necessary for installation. 

C) Commissioner’s Report

Commissioner Martin wanted to recognize John Barnes for his years 

of service as a Board of Education Member. 

The Board wished all a happy and safe Thanksgiving. 

Commissioner Petrey reminded everyone of the Christmas Parade 

December 1. 

Commissioner Aydlett, requested a letter to WRC on the Brumley 

Road boating access. 

Commissioner O’Neal requested at a future meeting a discussion on 

the Currituck Sound Study. 

D) County Manager’s Report

No comments 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

118



Number TDA2013007

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-545002 Historic Preservation 55,583$  
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 55,583$  

55,583$  55,583$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) -Increased by $55,583.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Related Expenditures (15447) - Increase appropriations for interior 
work on the Jarvisburg Colored School renovations.

119

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number TDA2013008

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-516001 Signs 13,880$  
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 13,880$  

13,880$  13,880$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Related Expenditures (15447) - Increase appropriations for 16 "NO 
WAKE" signs.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) -Increased by $13,880.

120

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number TDA2013009

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-539000 Unemployment Compensation 3,971$  
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 3,971$  

3,971$  3,971$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - Increase appropriations for unemployment 
charges for the year ending July 31, 2012.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) -Increased by $3,971.

121

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number TDA2013010

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-526200 Promotional Efforts 9,997$  
15442-545000 Contract Services 8,250$  
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 18,247$  

18,247$  18,247$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 3rd day of December, 2012 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - Increase appropriations costs associated with 
the NCDOT meeting and video.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) -Increased by $18,247.

122

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com

	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Consideration and Action:
	94-49 Memo
	94-49 Applicant Request
	1A Site Plan
	8A Site Plan

	Public Hearing and Action:
	PB 12-23 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	PB 12-10 Case Analysis
	PB 12-10 Site Plan

	Public Hearing and Action:
	PB 12-20 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	PB 12-05 Case Analysis

	Award bids for Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant Southern Outer Banks Water System
	Appointment of Commissioner to Albemarle Commission
	Appointments to Planning Board
	Planning Board
	Planning Board Appt Form

	Appointment to Board of Adjustment
	Appointment to Tourism Board
	Tourism Board Appt Form
	Martine-Applic for Tourism Board

	Budget Amendments
	Resolution to declare computers issued to Commissioner Rorer and Etheridge as surplus
	Approval of November 19, 2012 Minutes
	Budget Amendments
	December 3 correct.pdf
	REVISED   Currituck County Board of Commissioners Agenda  Historic Currituck County Courthouse




